
 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

Alexandra Palace and Park Board 

 
 
TUESDAY, 6TH OCTOBER, 2009 at 19:30 HRS - THE LONDESBOROUGH ROOM, 
ALEXANDRA PALACE WAY, WOOD GREEN, LONDON N22. 
 
Councillors:  
Councillor Egan (Chair), Hare, C. Harris, Peacock, Scott, Thompson (Vice Chair) and 
Williams  
 
Non-voting representatives:  
Ms V. Paley, Mr M. Tarpey and Mr N Willmott   
(Alexandra Palace and Park Consultative Committee). 
 
Observer:   
Mr D. Liebeck  (Chair, Alexandra Park and Palace Advisory Committee).   
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (late items 

will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items with be dealt 
with at items 11 & 15 below ) 
 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 



 

2 

 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial 
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of 
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent, 
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described 
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct. 
 
 
 

4. QUESTIONS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS : TO CONSIDER ANY QUESTIONS, 
DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS RECEIVED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART 4, 
SECTION B29 OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION    

 
5. FINANCE UPDATE  (PAGES 1 - 8)  
 
 Report of the Head of Finance – Alexandra Palace 

 
(a) Budget monitoring 5 months  to 31st August 2009  

(Report of the Head of Finance – Alexandra Palace) 
 
(b) Forecast to year end  

(Report of the Head of Finance – Alexandra Palace) 
 
(c) Additional bank signatory for Alexandra Palace Charitable Trust current 

account (Report of the Interim General Manager – Alexandra Palace) 
 
(d) Update on pension position (Report of the General Manager – Alexandra 

Palace) 
 
(e) Update on the external audit tender (Report of the General Manager – 

Alexandra Palace) 
 

6. INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT ON THE TRUST - COVERING REPORT TO LB 
HARINGEY'S INTERNAL AUDIT  (PAGES 9 - 24)  

 
 Report of the General Manager – Alexandra Palace 

 
7. PARK ACTIVITIES UPDATE  (PAGES 25 - 30)  
 
 Report of the Park Manager – Alexandra Palace 

 
8. FIREWORKS 2009 - UPDATE  (PAGES 31 - 34)  
 



 

3 

 Report of the General Manager – Alexandra Palace  
 

9. HARINGEY HEARTLANDS - PLANNING APPLICATION  (PAGES 35 - 38)  
 
 Report of the Park Manager – Alexandra Palace 

 
10. MINUTES  (PAGES 39 - 72)  
 
 (1) To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Alexandra Palace 

and Park Board held on 30 June 2009 (attached), and minutes of the Special 
Alexandra Palace and Park Board held on 2 September 2009 (attached); 

(2) To approve the minutes of the Consultative Committee held on  8 
September 2009 (ATTACHED); and   

(3) To receive the minutes of the Advisory Committee of 1 
September 2009 and  to consider any recommendations for the Board to 
consider (see ATTACHED MARKED).  

 
 

11. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT  UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of urgent unrestricted business admitted under Item 2 

above. 
 
 

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS    
 
 The following items are likely to be subject of a motion to exclude the press and 

public from the meeting as they contain exempt information as defined in Section 
100a of the Local Government Act 1972; namely information in respect of which a 
claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings, and 
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information) 
 
 

13. MINUTES  (PAGES 73 - 84)  
 
 To approve the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Alexandra Palace and Park 

Board held on 30 June 2009, and the exempt minutes of the Alexandra Palace and 
Park Panel held on 3 June 2009. 
 
 
 

14. MATTER ARISING FROM APB021  (PAGES 85 - 96)  
 
 Report of the Director of Corporate Resources – LB Haringey 

 
15. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 
 



 

4 

Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Local Democracy & Member 
Services  
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Clifford Hart  
Committee Manager - Non Cabinet 
Cttees 
Tel: 020-8489 2920  
Fax: 020-8489 2660 
E-mail:clifford.hart@haringey.gov.uk   
 
28 September 2009 
 

 
 
 



Agenda Item 5Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

               
      Agenda item: 
 

   ALEXANDRA PALACE & PARK  BOARD           On 6th October 2009  

 

Report Title: INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT ON THE TRUST – COVERING REPORT 
TO LB HARINGEY’S INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

Report of:  Andrew Gill, Interim General Manager, Alexandra Palace & Park 
Charitable Trust 
 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To advise the Board of progress since the report of the Head of Finance in June 
2009 on the outcome of the internal audit follow up visit. 

1.2  To advise the Board of the strategy for prioritising and completing the outstanding 
audit recommendations 

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 The Board is asked to note the content of the updated follow up report from London 
Borough of Haringey’s internal audit service 

2.2 The Board is asked to endorse the strategy for prioritising and completing the 
remaining audit recommendations. 

 

 
Report Authorised by: Andrew Gill, Interim General Manager  
 

 
Contact Officer: Andrew Gill, Interim General Manager, Alexandra Palace & Park, 
Alexandra Palace Way, Wood Green N22 7AY Tel No. 020 8365 4340 
 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1 The results of LB Haringey’s follow up audit are given in the report at Appendix 1. 
These results have been updated with their status at time of follow-up audit (June 
2009) and with Management comments (September 2009). 
 

3.2 Since June 2009, the Interim General Manager’s team has focussed on a range of 
priorities, some of which have impacted positively on the audit recommendations.  

 
3.3 The Interim General Manager has agreed with the LBH Head of Internal Audit to 

update the report with management comments and return it to LBH Internal Audit. 
Any further evidence of progress against the recommendations will be provided on 
request.  

 

Agenda Item 6Page 9



 

 2 

3.4 The Interim General Manager’s Assessment is that eight of the original twelve 
recommendations have now been fully achieved, one has not been achieved and 
the remaining three have been partially achieved. 

 
3.5 The Interim General Manager is in the process of drafting an Executive Briefing 

which aims to provide the Trustees with a holistic view of management priorities. 
This Executive Briefing will accompany a further report to the Board in late 2009.  

 
 

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if 
applicable) 

4.1 N/A 
 

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

5.1 No specific background papers were used in compiling this report.  
 

 
 

Description 
 
6.1 LB Haringey’s internal audit service conducted an audit of the internal controls 

operating within Alexandra Park and Palace Charitable Trust, the findings of 
which were reported to the Board in October 2008. The October report noted 
that there was a great deal of overlap between the internal audit 
recommendations and those arising from the first Walklate Report. The Board 
resolved that the actions arising from the internal audit report would be cross 
referenced to the work already being undertaken on governance and requested 
future updates on the status of the audit recommendations. 

 
6.2 LB Haringey’s internal audit service carried out a follow up audit in April 2009, 

which consisted of discussions with the former General Manager and a review of 
documentation. The report at Appendix 1 outlines the results of the follow up 
audit, including the status of management actions on each of the 
recommendations at June 2009; this has since been updated with comments by 
the Interim GM in September 2009. 

 
6.3 Since June 2009, the Interim GM’s team has focussed on a range of pressing 

and urgent priorities, some of which have impacted positively on the audit 
recommendations.  

 
6.4 The Interim GM has agreed with the LBH Head of Internal Audit to update the 

report with management comments and return it to LBH Internal Audit. Any 
further evidence of progress against the recommendations will be provided on 
request.  

 
6.5 The Interim GM’s Assessment is that eight of the original twelve 

recommendations have now been fully achieved, one has not been achieved 
(Corporate Governance) and the remaining three have been partially achieved.  

Page 10



 

 3 

 
6.6 While the recommendations in the Audit report are relevant and noteworthy, 

they no doubt reflect the original Audit Brief and do not identify several important 
areas in which the documents and systems of the Trust were lacking. 

 
6.7 Trustees are asked to note that the Interim GM has been strategically reviewing 

business operations and addressing short term urgent issues of skill deficiencies 
and legislative compliance, regularly updating a master compliance sheet. 

 
6.8 In addition to the tasks and activities that trustees will be aware of, the Interim 

General Manager (advised by expert consultants in the fields of Facilities 
Management and Healthy and Safety) has identified the following key priority 
areas for his team; 

 
 

• skills and resources 

• legislative, regulatory and health and safety compliance 

• finance – capital and revenue budgets 

• establishing and quantifying the extent of dilapidations  

• practical and proactive support of APTL in meeting their business 
objectives 

 
Trustees will receive further details on progress on the above key areas in future 
board reports. 

 
6.9 The Interim GM is in the process of drafting an Executive Briefing which aims to 

provide the Trustees with a holistic view of management priorities. This 
Executive Briefing will accompany a further report to the Board in late 2009, by 
which time it is anticipated that all of the management actions arising from the 
recommendations will be completed, with the possible exception of the final 
outcome of the review of corporate governance. 

 
6.10 The aim of the Executive Briefing is to provide the Trustees with a holistic view 

of management priorities including; 
 

a. Progress on internal audit recommendations 
b. Governance action plan 
c. Review of business critical systems on site with condition surveys 
d. Facilities Management action plan 
e. Draft risk register 
f. Other key issues 

 
 

7. Consultation 
7.1 N/A 
 
 
8. Legal and Financial Comments 
 

Page 11



 

 4 

8.1 The Trust’s Solicitor has been sent a copy of this report and has no comment to 
make. 

 
 The LBH CFO has been sent a copy of this report.  
 
9. Equalities Implications 
 
9.1 There are no perceived equalities implications in this report. 
 
10. Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs 
 
Appendix I – Follow up report of LB Haringey’s Internal Audit Service (updated 

September 2009) 
 
 

Page 12



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
er
v
ic
e 
F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
ce
 -
 (
th
e 
T
ru

st
) 
S
ep

te
m
b
er
2
0
0
9
 

 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 

1
2
 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

S
ta
tu
s
 a
t 
ti
m
e
 o
f 

fo
ll
o
w
-u
p
 a
u
d
it
 

(J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
) 

U
p
d
a
te
 b
y
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
t 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

R
e
v
is
e
d
 

D
e
a
d
li
n
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

1
. 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 a
 

C
o
d
e
 o
f 
C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
; 
ta
k
e
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 

p
u
b
lic
is
e
 i
t;
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

it
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
; 

a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 

c
o
m
p
lie
d
 w
it
h
 o
n
 a
n
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 b
a
s
is
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
, 
w
it
h
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

re
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
ti
n
g
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
. 

1
 

A
P
P
C
T
 
a
g
re
e
s
 
th
a
t 
it
 
w
ill
 

re
v
ie
w
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

b
u
t 
p
o
in
ts
 o
u
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
 b
o
a
rd
 

d
id
 

n
o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
t 

th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 
m
a
d
e
 
in
 

th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
f 
2
0
0
5
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 
th
e
 
b
o
a
rd
 
o
f 

tr
u
s
te
e
s
 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
in
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 

th
e
 

c
h
a
ri
ty
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

o
r 

a
d
v
is
o
rs
. 

T
h
e
 m
a
tt
e
r 
w
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 u
p
 b
y
 

th
e
 t
h
e
n
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
a
rd
 

b
u
t 
n
o
t 
p
u
rs
u
e
d
 

T
h
e
 
re
v
ie
w
 
w
h
e
n
 
it
 
is
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 
w
ill
 
re
ly
 
h
e
a
v
ily
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
a
n
d
 

th
is
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 
to
 
th
e
 

tr
u
s
te
e
s
 i
n
 d
u
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
. 

  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

   

N
o
t 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 A
 d
ra
ft
 C
o
d
e
 o
f 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
. 
A
P
P
C
T
 

a
d
v
is
e
d
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 t
h
a
t 
it
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 t
o
 

h
o
ld
 “
a
w
a
y
 d
a
y
s
” 
to
 

d
is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
te
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

w
a
y
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 
A
n
 

a
w
a
y
 d
a
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

s
e
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 1
9
th
 J
u
n
e
 

2
0
0
9
. 

    

N
o
t 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 A
t 
th
e
 A
P
P
C
T
 

B
o
a
rd
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

J
u
n
e
 3
0
, 
T
ru
s
te
e
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
 p
a
p
e
r 

w
h
ic
h
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 

th
e
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

a
 g
re
a
te
r 
o
v
e
rh
a
u
l 

o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
. 
A
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
S
te
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

fo
rm
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

o
v
e
rs
e
e
in
g
 t
h
is
 

w
o
rk
, 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

th
e
 b
ra
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

A
P
. 
  
T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 

w
ill
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 a
 b
ro
a
d
 

s
p
e
c
tr
u
m
 o
f 

in
te
re
s
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 h
ig
h
 

le
v
e
ls
 o
f 

c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm
 f
u
tu
re
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 m
a
s
te
r-

M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
0
 

Y
e
s
 

Page 13



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 

1
2
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

s
it
e
. 

T
h
e
 A
w
a
y
d
a
y
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 

fo
r 
2
6
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 a
 S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

F
o
ru
m
 f
o
r 
2
4
 

O
c
to
b
e
r.
 

  
 

2
. 
R
is
k
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 

ri
s
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
; 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

it
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
; 

a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 

c
o
m
p
lie
d
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 

e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 

1
 

A
P
P
C
T
 w
ill
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
ts
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
o
a
rd
 o
f 

tr
u
s
te
e
s
. 
F
o
rm
a
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

o
f 
c
o
u
rs
e
 b
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 n
o
w
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
is
 n
o
t 
g
o
in
g
 

a
h
e
a
d
 

 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

P
a
rt
ly
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

 A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 C
o
d
e
 

o
f 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 

tr
u
s
te
e
s
 w
e
re
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 w
it
h
 a
 

ri
s
k
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 a
n
d
 d
ra
ft
 

ri
s
k
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
a
t 
th
e
  

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 B
o
a
rd
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 w
e
re
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 w
ill
 

b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
w
a
y
 d
a
y
 

fo
r 
fu
rt
h
e
r 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 

 

P
a
rt
ly
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 T
h
e
 I
n
te
ri
m
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
a
lly
 

re
v
ie
w
in
g
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 s
h
o
rt
 

te
rm
 u
rg
e
n
t 
is
s
u
e
s
 

o
f 
s
k
ill
 d
e
fi
c
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

&
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
v
e
  

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
, 

u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 a
 m
a
s
te
r 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 s
h
e
e
t 

re
g
u
la
rl
y
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 n
e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
a
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 r
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
 w
o
rk
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 

T
ru
s
te
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

in
fo
rm
e
d
 a
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
  

       

Y
e
s
 

Page 14



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 3
 o
f 

1
2
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
. 

3
. 
R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
  
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 T
h
e
 

T
ru
s
t 

fo
rm
a
lly
 

a
g
re
e
s
 

a
n
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
th
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

T
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

s
p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t
im
in
g
 f
o
r 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 

a
n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
in
p
u
t 
fr
o
m
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
to
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 

B
o
a
rd
 

 

1
 

T
h
e
 
o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
P
P
C
T
 a
n
d
 L
B
H
 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L
B
H
 

c
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
. 
A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 
o
n
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 
w
a
s
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 
to
 
th
e
 
tr
u
s
te
e
s
 

s
o
m
e
 
ti
m
e
 
a
g
o
 
b
u
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
te
n
ts
 
w
e
re
 
re
je
c
te
d
 
b
y
 

th
e
 t
ru
s
te
e
s
. 

A
P
P
C
T
 
w
ill
 
re
v
ie
w
 
th
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 
a
n
d
 

d
e
fi
n
e
 

a
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

in
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
tr
u
s
t 

s
o
lic
it
o
r,
 c
h
a
ri
ty
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

It
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

a
 
ri
s
k
 
th
a
t 
to
o
 
c
lo
s
e
 
a
n
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
 
w
it
h
 
L
B
H
 
m
a
y
 

le
a
d
 
to
 
th
e
 
in
a
d
v
e
rt
e
n
t 

c
re
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
 

s
h
a
d
o
w
 

d
ir
e
c
to
rs
h
ip
 
o
f 
A
P
T
L
 
w
h
ic
h
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

P
a
rt
ly
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 A
 p
a
p
e
r 
fo
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

th
e
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 

w
it
h
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

d
ra
ft
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

P
a
rt
ly
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

  T
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 

o
p
e
ra
te
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
, 
w
it
h
 

re
g
u
la
r 
lia
is
o
n
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
e
n
io
r 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
f 
A
P
P
C
T
 

a
n
d
 L
B
H
 b
u
t 
th
e
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

e
x
e
rc
is
e
s
 

ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

ta
k
e
s
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 (
 

in
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 t
ru
s
te
e
s
 

w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
).
 

T
h
e
 f
in
a
l 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
ra
ft
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 

th
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

Y
e
s
 

Page 15



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 4
 o
f 

1
2
 

w
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
b
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
c
ia
l.
  
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 a
 r
is
k
 o
f 
th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 h
a
v
in
g
 u
n
d
u
e
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 o
f 

th
e
 c
h
a
ri
ty
 t
ru
s
te
e
s
 a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 r
e
p
e
rc
u
s
s
io
n
s
 i
f 
th
e
 

C
h
a
ri
ty
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 w
e
re
 t
o
 

c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 

s
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
p
ro
m
is
e
d
. 

 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 a
t 
1
. 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 A
 S
L
A
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
 

In
te
ri
m
 G
M
 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
s
in
g
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t,
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
  

L
B
H
. 

4
. 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 p
la
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
. 

 

 2
 

T
h
is
 
is
 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
. 

T
h
e
 

n
e
w
ly
 

a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 
H
e
a
d
 
o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 

w
ill
 
lo
o
k
 
to
 
re
-i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 
b
y
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

N
o
t 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 T
h
e
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

n
e
w
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
o
rs
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 

th
e
 C
h
a
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 

T
ra
d
in
g
 C
o
m
p
a
n
y
  

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 M
a
z
a
rs
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 

b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 a
s
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs
 t
o
 

th
e
 A
P
P
C
T
 a
n
d
 

A
P
T
L
. 

  

N
/A
 

N
o
 

5
. 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

1
 

A
P
P
C
T
 a
g
re
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 a
 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

P
a
rt
ly
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 

Page 16



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 5
 o
f 

1
2
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
; 
e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 

it
s
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
; 

a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 

c
o
m
p
lie
d
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 

e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

d
e
fi
n
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
, 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 
a
n
d
 
w
ill
 
d
ra
ft
 

s
u
it
a
b
le
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
s
. 

 T
h
e
 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 
o
n
 

th
o
s
e
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
 i
s
 a
 d
ir
e
c
t 
re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 

d
ri
v
e
 
to
 
a
c
h
ie
v
e
 
th
e
 
o
v
e
ra
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 t
ru
s
te
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

o
f 
ri
s
k
 
tr
a
n
s
fe
r 
v
ia
 
a
 
lo
n
g
 

le
a
s
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
b
u
ild
in
g
 
w
h
ic
h
 

h
a
s
 p
re
v
e
n
te
d
 r
e
-t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
. 

 

 T
o
 a
s
s
is
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 

C
h
a
ri
ty
 h
a
s
 e
n
te
re
d
 

in
to
 a
 o
n
e
 y
e
a
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 L
e
v
e
l 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
(S
L
A
) 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 f
ro
m
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
e
 s
ig
n
in
g
 

o
f 
th
e
 S
L
A
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
. 
 I
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 

re
g
u
la
r 
s
it
e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 h
e
ld
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
a
in
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 r
e
g
u
la
r 

w
o
rk
. 
A
ll 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

a
re
 n
o
w
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

re
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
s
e
 

re
g
is
te
r 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

c
re
a
te
d
 t
o
 s
h
o
w
 

k
e
y
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 

a
u
d
it
 t
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 

 R
e
g
u
la
r,
 f
o
rm
a
l 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 h
e
ld
 

w
it
h
 t
e
rm
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 o
n
 s
it
e
 

a
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 l
e
v
e
ls
. 

 T
h
e
 I
n
te
ri
m
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 u
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 u
s
e
 

L
B
O
H
 b
a
s
ic
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fr
o
m
 L
B
O
H
 a
re
 

a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 

k
e
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

w
o
rk
s
. 
(E
.g
. 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 

F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
).
 

 T
h
e
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 w
ill
 b
e
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
te
d
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

Page 17



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 6
 o
f 

1
2
 

b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 

 
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

n
e
w
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 M
 &
 

E
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

6
. 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ts
 a
 

fo
rm
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
; 
a
n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
in
g
 i
ts
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
s
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

d
e
fi
n
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l,
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

th
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

B
o
a
rd
. 

 

1
 

T
h
e
 

tr
u
s
t 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
s
 

in
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
b
y
 
w
a
y
 
o
f 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
, 

A
P
P
C
T
 i
s
 a
w
a
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 L
B
H
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
y
c
le
 i
s
 t
ri
e
n
n
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

th
a
t 
A
P
P
C
T
 
p
la
n
n
in
g
 
d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 

a
lig
n
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
L
B
H
 

s
y
s
te
m
. 

T
h
e
re
 

is
 

n
o
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
c
t 
th
a
t 
it
 d
o
e
s
 s
o
, 
b
u
t 
it
 w
ill
 

e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
th
re
e
 

y
e
a
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

P
a
rt
ly
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

 T
h
e
 C
h
a
ri
ty
 

T
ru
s
te
e
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 

a
d
o
p
te
d
 a
 o
n
e
 y
e
a
r 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
 i
n
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 w
e
re
 

a
d
v
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 t
h
re
e
 

y
e
a
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 p
la
n
 

o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 t
ru
s
te
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 t
h
e
 

fu
tu
re
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
h
a
ri
ty
. 
T
h
e
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
  

th
e
 c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

a
n
d
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 n
o
w
 m
e
e
t 

o
n
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
b
a
s
is
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 

  

P
a
rt
ly
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

 T
h
e
 I
n
te
ri
m
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

c
o
s
t 
m
o
d
e
ls
 f
o
r 

R
&
M
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
. 
  

 C
a
p
it
a
l 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1
1
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

ti
m
e
ta
b
le
..
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
w
ill
 

a
tt
e
m
p
t 
to
 a
lig
n
 i
ts
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
e
tt
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
a
t 

o
f 
L
B
H
. 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

Y
e
s
 

7
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 S
ta
ff
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

 

2
 

A
ll 

s
ta
ff
 
w
ill
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ra
is
e
d
 
b
y
 
th
e
 
e
n
d
 
o
f 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

d
e
a
d
lin
e
 o
f 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 T
h
e
 I
n
te
ri
m
 

N
/A
 

Y
e
s
 

Page 18



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 7
 o
f 

1
2
 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 

a
 f
o
rm
a
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 i
s
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

s
p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
e
 r
o
le
s
 a
n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
 o
f 
a
ll 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
ie
s
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

th
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
0
8
 

 

w
a
s
 n
o
t 
m
e
t 
a
ll 

s
ta
ff
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 

h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
It
 i
s
 

in
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 h
o
ld
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 t
w
ic
e
 

y
e
a
rl
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

C
h
a
ri
ty
 h
a
s
 

a
d
o
p
te
d
 t
h
e
 

te
m
p
la
te
 t
h
a
t 
is
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
s
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 c
u
s
to
m
 

a
n
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

S
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

o
f 
s
k
ill
 d
e
fi
c
ie
n
c
ie
s
 

a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 

 A
 n
e
w
 S
ta
ff
 

H
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
ls
 a
re
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
a
ll 

p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
 

Page 19



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 8
 o
f 

1
2
 

8
. 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 

it
s
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

c
o
m
p
lie
s
 
w
it
h
 
lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 

re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
. 

In
 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 
th
e
 
T
ru
s
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 

e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 
a
re
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 

fo
r:
  

•
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
; 

•
 

e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
; 
a
n
d
 

•
 

le
g
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

1
 

T
h
e
 
A
P
P
C
T
 
h
a
v
e
 
re
c
e
n
tl
y
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 
th
e
 
fu
tu
re
 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 
fo
r 
S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 
a
n
d
 

E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
. 
A
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 p
la
n
 

is
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
e
 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 
is
 

s
e
c
u
re
d
 
u
n
ti
l 
it
 
is
 
te
n
d
e
re
d
 

a
n
d
 a
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
e
g
u
n
 i
n
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
, 
th
e
 
e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
2
0
1
0
 w
h
e
n
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
-

te
n
d
e
re
d
. 

T
h
e
 
G
e
n
e
ra
l 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
is
 

s
e
e
k
in
g
 
a
d
v
ic
e
 
o
n
 
th
e
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

to
 
th
e
 
tr
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 
th
is
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
o
a
rd
 i
n
 d
u
e
 

c
o
u
rs
e
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 

w
ill
 
b
e
 
s
o
u
g
h
t 
a
s
 
p
a
rt
 
o
f 
a
 

re
v
ie
w
 
o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 

b
e
in
g
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te
d
 b
y
  
th
e
 n
e
w
 H
e
a
d
 

o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
  

 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

P
a
rt
ly
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
  

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 

e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty
. 
In
te
rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 w
e
re
 a
d
v
is
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o
f 
a
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
le
g
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

th
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 
  

   

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 N
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 w
it
h
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
f 
L
B
O
H
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

M
&
E
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

b
e
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 

n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
in
 

p
la
c
e
 b
y
 3
1
/8
/1
0
. 

 R
e
g
u
la
r,
 f
o
rm
a
l 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
R
e
v
ie
w
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
re
 h
e
ld
 

w
it
h
 t
e
rm
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 o
n
 s
it
e
 

a
t 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 l
e
v
e
ls
. 

 L
e
g
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
e
re
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 

b
y
 T
ru
s
te
e
s
 a
t 

th
e
ir
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 

3
0
 J
u
n
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

re
g
u
a
la
ri
s
e
d
 

N
/A
 

Y
e
s
 

Page 20



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 9
 o
f 

1
2
 

9
. 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

 A
 
c
o
p
y
 
o
f 
th
e
 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

b
o
n
d
 
h
e
ld
 
b
y
 
In
te
g
ra
l 

(U
K
) 

L
td
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

o
b
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 f
ile
. 
 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

in
 f
o
rc
e
 s
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
is
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 o
r 

re
-a
p
p
o
in
te
d
. 

2
 

T
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 

 

 
A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 
N
/A
 

N
o
 

1
0
. 
R
e
p
a
ir
 a
n
d
 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

B
u
ild
in
g
 

 T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

o
f 
p
la
n
n
e
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 b
y
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
ly
 

q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 a
n
d
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r/
s
u
rv
e
y
o
r,
 i
s
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 

T
h
e
 T
ru
s
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
a
n
y
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
s
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

2
 

A
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
P
P
M
 

is
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
, 
th
e
 
G
M
 
h
a
s
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

re
-a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 

th
e
 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
d
v
is
o
r 
to
 

a
s
s
is
t 

in
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

e
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 
A
d
v
ic
e
 

is
 a
ls
o
 s
o
u
g
h
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
ild
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 

s
e
v
e
ra
l 

o
th
e
r 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
a
d
v
is
o
rs
 
o
n
 
a
n
 

a
s
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 b
a
s
is
. 

T
h
e
 P
P
M
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
s
 u
n
le
s
s
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ri
ty
, 

h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
to
ta
l 
s
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
is
 r
o
le
 w
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 

u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
o
s
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
. 

 
T
h
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 i
s
 h
e
ld
 o
n
 

a
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 

c
o
m
p
ile
d
 b
y
 a
 

c
o
m
p
a
n
y
 c
a
lle
d
 

F
S
I;
 u
s
in
g
 a
 

s
o
ft
w
a
re
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 

th
e
y
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

c
a
lle
d
 C
o
n
c
e
p
t.
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

s
o
m
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
s
 

s
in
c
e
 i
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 e
n
te
re
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r.
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 

a
d
v
is
e
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 

th
a
t 
is
 o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 

w
h
a
t 
is
 t
e
rm
e
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
. 
W
o
rk
 

is
 n
o
t 
c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 D
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 

a
re
a
s
 o
f 
V
F
M
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y
 o
f 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 k
e
y
 a
re
a
s
 

o
f 
d
e
fi
c
ie
n
c
y
. 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 F
M
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

fo
r 
3
1
/8
/1
0
 w
h
e
n
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

e
x
p
ir
e
s
. 

 L
B
H
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 

a
re
 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 

s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

w
it
h
 u
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 

V
F
M
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 
 

N
/A
 

Y
e
s
 

Page 21



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 1
0
 o
f 

1
2
 

u
n
ti
l 
v
e
ri
fi
e
d
 a
s
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 b
y
 P
e
te
r 

S
h
a
rp
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
  

a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
  

 th
e
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r.
 

 D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
rs
e
 

o
f 
th
e
 a
u
d
it
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 w
a
s
 n
o
te
d
 

 a
) 
le
v
e
l 
o
f 
m
o
n
th
ly
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 

b
) 
 T
h
e
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 w
a
s
 

c
o
m
p
ile
d
 s
o
m
e
 

y
e
a
rs
 a
g
o
. 

 c
) 
T
h
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 c
a
n
 b
y
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 

a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

P
P
M
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r.
  

  d
) 
In
c
u
rr
e
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
n
 

re
p
a
ir
s
 o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

a
p
p
e
a
rs
 h
ig
h
..
  

      T
h
is
 a
re
a
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
r 

c
lo
s
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
V
F
M
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

in
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

b
e
in
g
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 

w
it
h
 i
n
c
u
m
b
e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 t
o
p
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

  C
o
n
c
e
p
t 
S
y
s
te
m
 

a
n
d
 d
a
ta
b
a
s
e
 

b
e
in
g
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 f
o
r 

n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

  R
e
a
c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

c
o
n
tr
o
l 
s
y
s
te
m
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 

c
a
p
p
e
d
 a
t 
a
 

m
o
n
th
ly
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

u
n
d
e
r 
F
M
 f
o
rm
a
l 

Page 22



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 1
1
 o
f 

1
2
 

 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l.
 

1
1
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

 T
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 f
o
rm
a
l 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l,
 i
n
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
  
o
f 

th
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
t 

        

2
 

A
g
re
e
d
, 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
e
n
d
in
g
 
o
f 

th
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
je
c
t,
 

s
o
m
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
K
P
I 
p
o
in
ts
 
a
re
 

n
o
t 
v
a
lid
 
a
n
d
 
a
s
 
s
u
c
h
 
th
e
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 
th
is
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

fo
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
a
y
 n
o
w
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

n
e
e
d
e
d
. 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

e
n
d
e
d
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 

Page 23



In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
o
ll
o
w
-u
p
 A
u
d
it
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 P
a
la
c
e
 -
 (
th
e
 T
ru
s
t)
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 
 

 
P
a
g
e
 1
2
 o
f 

1
2
 

 1
2
. 
A
s
s
e
t 
R
e
g
is
te
r  

 T
h
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
re
g
is
te
r 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
to
 
re
fl
e
c
t 
d
a
te
 

o
f 
a
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
. 
 

A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
o
n
-g
o
in
g
 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 

re
g
is
te
r 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 

a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 

2
 

A
g
re
e
d
. 
A
 m
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 f
ix
e
d
 

a
s
s
e
t 

re
g
is
te
r 

w
ill
 

b
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 
in
 
th
e
 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
d
a
te
 

a
n
d
 

v
a
lu
e
 

o
f 

a
ll 

n
e
w
 

a
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
. 
 

In
 
re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 
a
s
s
e
ts
, 

th
is
 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

re
la
ti
v
e
ly
 
e
a
s
y
 
to
 
o
b
ta
in
 
fo
r 

th
e
 p
a
s
t 
th
re
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
rs
. 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 

th
e
 

b
a
c
k
in
g
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

e
a
rl
ie
r 

a
c
q
u
is
it
io
n
s
 
is
 
lik
e
ly
 
to
 
b
e
 
in
 

a
rc
h
iv
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
u
s
 w
e
 w
ill
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 c
o
s
t/
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
o
f 

u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
fo
r 
th
e
s
e
 

it
e
m
s
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 
a
s
 
m
a
n
y
 

o
ld
e
r 

it
e
m
s
 
w
ill
 
b
e
 
fu
lly
 

d
e
p
re
c
ia
te
d
. 

 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

 A
n
 a
s
s
e
t 
re
g
is
te
r 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
ra
w
n
 u
p
 

a
n
d
 a
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

ta
g
g
in
g
 o
f 
it
e
m
s
 

p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

la
s
t 
th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
 

c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
to
 l
is
ts
 o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts
 h
e
ld
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 

o
ld
e
r 
th
e
n
 t
h
re
e
 

y
e
a
rs
 o
ld
. 
A
 c
o
p
y
 o
f 

th
e
 t
w
o
 r
e
c
o
rd
s
 i
s
 

b
e
in
g
 s
to
re
d
 b
o
th
 

o
n
 a
n
d
 o
ff
 s
it
e
. 
 

A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 

Page 24



     Agenda item: 

Alexandra Park & Palace Board On 6th October 2009

Report Title: PARK ACTIVITIES UPDATE

Report of: Mark Evison, Park Manager 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To inform the Board of the recent activities carried out in Alexandra Park 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Board notes the report. 

2.2 That the Board note the progress made on the Workshop lease. 

2.3 That the Board agree to the Park Manager submitting a planning application to LB 
Haringey for the proposed deer enclosure extension. 

2.4 That the Board note that the cost for construction of a path across Redstone Field is 
additional to the Trust’s planned expenditure for this financial year. 

Report Authorised by: Mark Evison, Park Manager:    ……………………………… 

Contact Officer: Mark Evison, Park Manager,
Alexandra Park & Palace Charitable Trust, Alexandra Palace Way, 
Wood Green N22 7AY. Tel No. 020 8365 2121. 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1 This report details the activities and projects that have recently taken place in the park. 

3.2 Officers are progressing the Workshop lease negotiations. 

3.3 The Trustees undertook a site visit on 23rd June 2009 to consider the proposals for the 
extension to the deer enclosure and new path across Redstone Field. 

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable) 

4.1 N/A 

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

Reports and draft Minutes of APCT Panel meeting, 29 April 2009 

Agenda Item 7Page 25



6. Description 

Park Events 
6.1 The park has hosted many community events so far this year including: 

 Bird watching Walks 

 Friends of Alexandra Park Open Day 

 Lakeside Art exhibition 

 Hornsey YMCA 10k run 

 Alzheimer’s Society Memory Walk 

 Chinese State Circus 

 Haringey pre-school picnic 

 Children’s funfair 

 Farmers’ markets 

 Bicycle treasure trail (Haringey Schools) 

 Football in the Community summer programme 

Park Concessions – Workshop Building 
6.2 The agreed operator for the Workshop Building obtained planning permission 

for the project. The lease negotiations are being concluded and the 
refurbishment should start in September, subject to completion of the lease 
before any works start. 

External Funding Bids 
6.3 The Alexandra Park Ornithological Group were successful in their bid for a 

‘Making a difference’ grant.  They now have £2,000 for projects to improve the 
habitats available for birds and other wildlife in the area adjacent to the 
reservoirs.  Once agreed, the work will be carried out over the winter period. 

6.4 The work for the Environment Agency Urban Fisheries Grant has commenced.  
New fish-refuges have been installed together with new aquatic vegetation.  
Two new fishing platforms will also be constructed to supplement the existing 
four.

Boundary Maintenance
6.5 In order to protect the park against encroachment by neighbours the boundary 

policy of Haringey Parks Service has been adapted for the palace grounds. 

6.6 The encroachments are assessed individually and action is taken according to 
type of encroachment and the length of time it has been in place. 

 Green Flag Award 
6.7 The park was awarded a Green Flag for the second year.  This reflects the hard 

work of our staff and volunteers who assisted in the submission.  A Green Flag 
Award ranks the park amongst the best in the country and is the national 
standard for parks and greenspaces. 

6.8 The Friends of the Park were heavily involved in the day, the Chairman, Gordon 
Hutchinson met with the judges, and other members opened the Park 
Information Centre. 

Page 26



Deer Enclosure extension
6.9 The Deer Manager has recommended a further extension to the fenced area to 

improve conditions for the fallow deer.  Currently the deer rely heavily on 
supplementary feed in the form of pellets, haylage and fresh vegetables. 

6.10 It is proposed an area approximately 40x40m be added to the southern end of 
the southern compound.  The installation of chainlink fencing to match will be 
subject to a planning application. 

6.11 This proposal was presented to the Advisory Committee and Consultative 
Committee in February 2009 and no comments were made at that time. 

6.12 The Trustees resolved on 24 February 2009 to carry out a site visit to the 
enclosure in order to consider the fencing and the affect it may have on the 
landscape of the park. 

6.13 This site visit took place on 23 June 2009 and all trustees were in agreement 
that the proposal was in keeping with the landscape of the park. 

6.14 The Park Manager will now progress with obtaining the necessary planning 
permission in order to proceed with installation of the fencing. 

Proposed Footpath across Redston Field 
6.15 The Warner Estate Residents Association (WERA) proposed a hard-surfaced 

path to link the Park Avenue North Entrance to the footpath network within the 
park.

6.16 This proposal was discussed by both the Advisory and Consultative Committee 
and both committees resolved: 

“that the proposals by Warner Estate Residents 
Association in respect of a proposal for a all-
weather path to replace the present informal, and 
very muddy, desire line from the top of Park 
Avenue North across the Redston Road playing 
fields and the old race-course to join the Lower 
Road at the eastern end of the car park, be 
endorsement for recommendation to the 
Alexandra Palace and Park Board on 24 
February 2009” 

6.17 At that Board meeting on 24 February 2009 it was resolved that consideration 
of the proposal be deferred pending a site visit and professional conservation 
evaluation.

6.18 The Trustees met on site on 23 June 2009 to discuss the proposal, 
representatives from WERA were in attendance. 

6.19 The Chair’s view is that Redstone Field and the old race course are both 
crossed by a number of desire lines and no route is more important than any 
other.  He wished to preserve the existing green space by avoiding new such 
hard surfaced paths in this area of the path. 

6.20 As reported to Board on 30th June 2009 finances have been reviewed and the 
park budget does not have the funding available for a project of this scale.  The 
hard surfaces maintenance budget is fully committed for 2009-10. 

Page 27



7.  Recommendations 
7.1 That the Board notes the report. 

7.2 That the Board note the progress made on the Workshop lease. 

7.3 That the Board agree to the Park Manager submitting a planning application to 
LB Haringey for the proposed deer enclosure extension. 

7.4 That the Board note that the cost for construction of a path across Redstone 
Field is additional to the Trust’s planned expenditure for this financial year. 

8.  Legal Implications 
8.1 The Trust's solicitor was provided with a draft of this report and his advice has 

been taken into account in the production of this final version. 

8.2 The LBH Head of Legal Services has been sent a copy of this report.  

9.  Financial Implications 
9.1 A new tenant for the Workshop Building will secure a new income stream for 

the Trust.  The rental figures were previously discussed in the exempt section of 
the Panel meeting on 29th April 2009. 

9.2 This building currently attracts small annual costs due to insurance, standing 
charges on the utilities and maintenance of the fire alarm system.  Letting the 
building on a fully repairing basis will pass those costs onto the tenant. 

9.3 The two grant funded projects will provide additional improvements in the park 
with no impact on revenue budgets. 

9.4 The cost of the deer enclosure fencing was original quoted at £9,000.  
However, alternative prices have been received at around half of this. 

9.5 The estimated cost (2008) for the construction of a new footpath across 
Redston Field is around £30,000.  This figure is additional to the Trust’s 
planned expenditure and is not budgeted in 2009-10. 

9.6 The LBH Chief Financial Officer has been sent a copy of this report and his 
comments are shown at Appendix A. 

10. Use of Appendices/Tables/Photographs 

10.1 Appendix A: Comments of the LBH Chief Financial Officer. 

Page 28



Alexandra Park & Palace Board On 6th October 2009

Report Title: PARK ACTIVITIES UPDATE

Report of: Mark Evison, Park Manager 

Appendix A 

Gerald Almeroth, LBH Chief Financial Officer has been supplied a copy of this 
report and provided the following comment: 

“The report is noted and agree that no additional works above the approved budget 
should be instigated.” 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



1

     Agenda item: 

Alexandra Park & Palace Board on 6th October 2009

Report Title: Fireworks 2009 Update

Report of: Andrew Gill, Interim General Manager 

1. Purpose 

1.1 For information: To make the Board aware of the options considered for the annual 
fireworks display. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Board notes the report, and notes the decision to deliver the fireworks 
display event as usual (option 1). 

Report Authorised by: Andrew Gill, Interim General Manager…………………………… 

Contact Officer: Andrew Gill, Interim General Manager, Alexandra Palace & Park, 
Alexandra Palace Way, Wood Green N22 7AY Tel No. 020 8365 2121

3. Executive Summary 

3.1 The fireworks event has been reviewed to consider its overall impact on the 
organisation and benefits to the local community. 

3.2 The event will take place on Saturday 7th November 2009. 

3.3 An number of areas have been identified to reduce costs and increase income. 

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable) 

4.1 N/A 

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

5.1 No specific background papers other than those appended were used in compiling 
this report. 

Agenda Item 8Page 31



2

Description
5.2 Alexandra Palace has held a public fireworks display in November for a number of 

years. This display is well known to local people and those further afield.  Up to 
70,000 people attend the event which takes place on a Saturday night. 

5.3 Due to the large numbers of people attending this event a huge safety and security 
operation takes place.  Following concerns of the responsible authorities (e.g. 
Metropolitan Police and the Licensing Authority) a new safety and security system 
was implemented in 2006.  This significantly increased the cost of the delivering the 
event.

5.4 The staff of Alexandra Palace Trading Limited (APTL) plan, organise and deliver 
the event on behalf of the Trust as their staff are suitably qualified and experienced.

5.5 The Trust has £100,000 in its budget for the fireworks display on 7th November 
2009.  The actual cost of the event in 2009 was approximately £130,000. 

5.6 The metropolitan police do not charge for the time of approximately 160 officers 
who attend the event and operate the local road closures. 

5.7 Four options have been reviewed jointly by Trust and Trading Company staff: 

Option 1: Deliver the event as usual 
This event is one way the Trust delivers its charitable objectives, it is well known and 
appreciated by local people.
Fireworks prevents any other business opportunities on that weekend. 
There is a huge clear-up operation in the building and park following fireworks. 
The predicted figures show a £30,000 overspend based on 2008 costs, however, some 
cost saving measures have been recommended. 

Option 2: Cancel the event:
In previous years when the fireworks display has had no publicity, press coverage or 
advertising, approximately 35,000 people attended due to the continuity of this event.  
If 35,000 visitors attend expecting a firework display there will be public order issues to 
manage. The security and safety operation will still be required. 

Option 3: Limit the size of the event 
Provide a limited number of tickets for free or at nominal cost to control the size of the 
event (for example 20,000).  However as with option 2 above, one risk is that 35,000 
people would still attend.  An area would need to be secured and the operation to 
manage the ticket holders and non-ticket holders would be as large as when holding 
the event as normal.  Printing and distributing the tickets would be a costly operation. 
This option would deliver a minimal saving overall, with the risk that the segregation 
would cause a reduction of foot traffic into the building and an associated loss of 
income.

Option 4: Deliver an alternative event 
If an alternative event was delivered for example, at Christmas, option 2 would still 
apply.  If an alternative event took place over the fireworks weekend, option 2 would 
apply, plus the negative press coverage for not holding the fireworks display. 

Page 32



3

5.8 Due to the chance that 35,000 visitors will attend regardless, the alternative options 
are not going to save a great deal of money. 

5.9 The outcome of the review is to proceed with Option 1 and hold the event as usual. 

5.10 To prevent the event going overspent, a number of areas have been identified to 
make savings and increase income:  

 Minimise marketing costs – as people know it will happen; use press stories - save 
up to £5,000 

 The quotations for the fireworks display are approximately £5,000 under budget 

 Panorama Room hospitality will not take place and the room will be used for 
alternative activities. 

 Improve collections of cash donated by the visiting public.  Save the cost of cash-
collection staff by mobilising the community groups and interested parties who sit 
on the Alexandra Palace Advisory and Consultative Committees. 

 Reduce costs of DJ by finding alternative provision. 

 Review income from concessions internal and external and funfair 

 The Beer festival improved income by £25k in 2009.  There is room for growth and 
this activity will be located in the Great Hall. 

6. Consultation 
6.1 The review of the event was undertaken together with Alexandra Palace Trading 

Ltd, and key partners such as London Borough of Haringey, Metropolitan Police 
and local stakeholders. 

7. Recommendations 
7.1 That the Board notes the report, and the decision to deliver the fireworks display 

event as usual (option 1). 

8. Legal Implications 
8.1 The Trust’s solicitor and LBH Head of Legal Services have been sent a copy of this 

report.

9. Financial Implications 
9.1 The cost of the 2008 event was £30,000 more that the 2009 budget. 
9.2 Implementing the savings identified and with the improved income that has been 

forecast will result in a break-even position. 
9.3 The LBH Chief Financial Officer has been sent a copy of this report and his 

comments are shown at Appendix A. 

10. Use of Appendices/Tables/Photographs 

10.1 Appendix A: Comments of the LBH Chief Financial Officer. 

Page 33



4

Alexandra Park & Palace Board On 6th October 2009

Report Title: Fireworks 2009 Update

Report of: Andrew Gill, Interim General Manager 

Appendix A 

Gerald Almeroth, LBH Chief Financial Officer has been supplied a copy of this 
report and provided the following comment: 

“The option identified with additional cost saving measures to stay within budget is 
welcomed.”

Page 34



1

     Agenda item: 

Alexandra Park & Palace Board on 6th October 2009

Report Title: Haringey Heartlands Outline Planning Application

Report of: Mark Evison, Park Manager 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To advise the Board of the Outline Planning Application for the Haringey Heartlands 
developments. 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the board considers the planning application and decides what comments, if any, it 
wishes to provide to the planning authority. 

Report Authorised by: Andrew Gill, Interim General Manager………………………… 

Contact Officer: Mark Evison, Park Manager, Alexandra Park & Palace, Alexandra Palace 
Way, Wood Green LONDON N22 7AY. Tel No. 020 8365 2121

3. Executive Summary 

3.1 The planning application was received by Haringey Council on 20th March 2009. 

3.2 The deadline for formal comments on the application has passed, however any comments 
made by the Board will be submitted to the planning authority for consideration. 

3.3 The development site is outside the boundaries of the park and palace, and the Board may 
consider that this does not affect the Trust’s strategies and objectives. 

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable) 

4.1 N/A 

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

5.1 No specific background papers other than those appended were used in compiling this report.
The full application is available on the Haringey website (www.haringey.gov.uk) using reference 
number HGY/2009/0503 

Agenda Item 9Page 35



2

Description
5.2 Alexandra Palace was not considered as a neighbour affected by this proposal and 

was not consulted. 

5.3 Trustees considered the resolutions of an Urgency Sub-Committee of the Statutory 
Advisory Committee and the advice from the Trust Solicitor at the Board Meeting 
on 30th June 2009.  Trustees resolved that the General Manager be asked to 
ascertain if the Heartlands application would be put to the Board for comments and 
advise accordingly of any required timescales.    

5.4 The Planning Department have advised that the consultation period on the 
application has closed.  However the decision meeting is unlikely to take place this 
year so any comments the Board wishes to submit can be included in the report for 
the Planning Committee.  However, comments should be made as soon as 
possible.

5.5 The summary of the outline planning application is: 
“for demolition of existing structures and redevelopment to provide a 
residential led, mixed-use development, comprising between 1,100 to 
1,200 residential units (C3); with 460sqm to 700sqm of office uses (B1); 
370sqm to 700sqm of retail/financial and professional services uses 
(A1/A2); 190sqm to 550sqm of restaurant/cafe/drinking establishment uses 
(A3/A4); 325sqm to 550sqm of community/assembly/leisure uses (D1/D2); 
new landscaping, public and private open space, and energy centre, two 
utility compounds, up to 251 car parking spaces, cycle parking, access and 
other associated infrastructure works.” 

5.6 This outline planning application is a very large document and can be viewed in full 
on the Haringey Council website (www.haringey.gov.uk) using reference number 
HGY/2009/0503.

5.7 The townscape and visual effects document has many references to the impact on 
the views from the park and palace.  The palace has been determined as a primary 
viewpoint.  The developer has considered the impact that the development would 
have on the views from the palace as: 

 Maximum parameters: long-term, local and of high adverse significance 

 Minimum parameters: long-term, local and of moderate adverse significance 

5.8 The report has also considered the potential effects on the Palace and the setting 
of the park as permanent, local effects of minor adverse significance.  With use of 
sensitive design to mitigate the effect is reduced to precautionary permanent, local 
effects of minor adverse significance. 

5.9 The development site is outside the boundaries of the park and palace, and the 
Board may consider that this does not affect the Trust’s strategies and objectives. 

Page 36



3

6. Consultation 
6.1 The Planning Authority has carried out a significant amount of consultation – both 

on the planning brief/framework back in 2005/6 and now on the outline application.  
No formal consultation letter was sent to the General Manager as the Planning 
Authority felt there was in principle no significant impact on the Palace and 
consultation letters are usually sent to immediate neighbours.  There were also 
several site notices placed around the development site 

7. Recommendations 
7.1 That the board considers the planning application and decides what comments, if 

any, it wishes to provide to the planning authority. 

8. Legal Implications 
8.1 The Trust’s solicitor and LBH Head of Legal Services have been sent a copy of this 

report.

9. Financial Implications 
9.1 The development is not expected to have any negative impact on the Trust’s 

budgets.

9.2 New residents in the area could increase the footfall for the palace and increase 
revenues.

9.3 The LBH Chief Financial Officer has been sent a copy of this report and has noted 
its contents. 

10.  Use of Appendices/Tables/Photographs 
10.1 N/A

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



UNRESTRICTED MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

Present:       DRAFT 
Indicates attendees* 
 

Councillors Egan* (Chair), Hare*, C. Harris*, Peacock, Scott, Thompson* (Vice-
Chair), Williams*  
 

 
Non-Voting 
Representatives: 

Ms Paley*, Mr Tarpey*, Mr Willmott* 

 
Observer: Mr D. Liebeck* 
 
Also present: 
 
Mr A Gill – Acting General Manager – Alexandra Palace 
Mr I Harris – Trust Solicitor  
Ms J Parker – Director of Corporate Resources – LB Haringey 
Ms R Kane – Managing Director Alexandra Palace Trading Limited 
Ms H Downie – Head of Finance - Alexandra Palace 
Mr  M Evison – Park Manager - Alexandra Palace  
Mr M De’Ath - Alexandra Palace Trading Limited 
Mr T Mitchison – Principal Lawyer – LB Haringey 
Mr C Hart – Committee Manager – LB Haringey 
 
 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

 

APBO01.
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Peacock and Scott, and 
Mr Willmott, and for lateness from Mr Tarpey. 
 
NOTED 
 

APBO02.
 

URGENT BUSINESS 

 The Chair asked for clarification if there were any items of urgent business. 
 
The Clerk to the Board – Mr Hart advised that there were no items of urgent 
business, however in terms of two exempt Agenda items marked ‘TO FOLLOW’ 
(Items 19 & 21) the report authors would give reasons for lateness during the 
introduction of each item. 
 
NOTED 
 

APBO03.
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 Councillor C. Harris declared a personal interest as a Member of the Pensions 
Committee of the LB Haringey. 
 
Councillor Thompson declared a personal interest as a Member of the Pensions 

Agenda Item 10Page 39



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

Committee, and Planning Committee of the LB Haringey. 
 
Councillor Hare declared a personal interest as a Member of the Planning 
Committee of the LB Haringey. 
 
NOTED 
 
 

APBO04.
 

QUESTIONS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS : TO CONSIDER ANY 
QUESTIONS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS RECEIVED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH PART 4, SECTION B29 OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION 

 Nil 
 

APBO05.
 

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS TO THE BOARD OF ALEXANDRA PALACE 
TRADING LIMITED 

 RESOLVED 
 

i. That the resignation of Councillor Dogus and Councillor Oakes as 
Directors of APTL be noted; and 

 
ii. That Councillor Scott and Councillor Thompson be nominated to APTL 

as  replacement Board Directors of APTL . 
 
 

APBO06.
 

2008/09 BUDGET OUTTURN 

 The Chair asked for a brief introduction of the report. 
 
The Head of Finance – Alexandra Palace – Ms Downie informed the Board that 
the forecast results for the 2008/09 financial year were presented to the Board on 
24th February 2009. At that stage, the Trust was anticipating an under spend of 
£200k against the original budget, although the gift aid payment from the trading 
company was forecast to be £550k lower than budgeted, resulting in an 
increased requirement for deficit funding from the Council of £350k. 

Ms Downie referred the Board to the tabulation at Appendix 1 which summarised 
the draft results for the 2008/09 financial year. Ms Downie reported that overall, 
income was £15k above forecast and expenditure £16k below forecast, giving a 
net favourable variance of £31k.  The trading company’s operating profit for the 
year was £467k, £17k above the forecast. However, the trading company 
adopted FRS17 ‘Retirement Benefits’ in 2007/08, which required any 
surplus/deficit on defined benefit pension schemes to be incorporated into the 
financial statements. Year end adjustments relating to FRS17 resulted in reported 
profit being reduced by £32k. The gift aid payment from the trading company was 
therefore £15k below forecast, at £435k.  
 
Ms Downie further advised that income was £15k above forecast, largely due to 
higher than anticipated service charges for utilities costs, which were invoiced 
annually in arrears. This reflected the sharp increase in fuel costs over the past 
twelve months. Prime costs were £40k or 3% below forecast for the year, 
primarily in contracted services, and the under spend was mainly in Parks, with 
the Park contract being £20k and Park security contract being £5k below 

Page 40



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

forecast. Fixed overheads were £28k below forecast due to an under spend in 
central admin charges from the Council and  the budget and forecast included an 
allowance for officers’ time, and it had been established that this would not be 
charged. 
 
Ms Downie further informed the Board that the 2008/09 audit fieldwork was 
substantially complete and had gone well. No material adjustments to the 
accounts had been identified at this stage, though the following matters were 
outstanding or subject to change before the date of signing the accounts; 
 

• Further work required to confirm the existence of fixed assets which were 
more than three years old, for which there was no detailed fixed asset 
register. 

• A partial bad debt provision had been made in the trading company 
accounts against an outstanding debt relating to an event which was 
cancelled by the client, despite having a signed contract in place. The 
trading company was actively negotiating with the client in order to recover 
the debt, and Deloittes would monitor the progress of the negotiations in 
order to assess the adequacy of the provision prior to signing the 
accounts. 

• The draft accounts did not currently include any provision relating to the 
claim intimated by Firoka against the Trust, and Deloittes would monitor 
the progress of this matter in order to assess the correct treatment and 
disclosures in the accounts. 

 
Ms Downie concluded that it was anticipated that the APTL annual report and 
accounts would be signed at the APTL Board meeting on 4 September 2009 and 
the consolidated annual report and accounts would be submitted to the  
Alexandra Palace and Park Board meeting on 6 October 2009. In order to meet 
both anticipated reporting dates a draft of the trading company’s annual report 
and accounts would be circulated to APTL Directors for comment by the end of 
July 2009, with a draft of the consolidated report and accounts being circulated to 
the Alexandra Palace and Park Board trustees for comment by the end of August 
2009. 
 
The Trust Solicitor  - Mr Harris referred to paragraph 6.7 of the report and advised 
that in respect of any provision relating to the claim intimated by Firoka against 
the Trust, following a recent communication from the Solicitor representing the 
Firoka Group (Lewis Silkin) the issue would be the subject of some discussion 
during the exempt part of the proceedings. 
 
In clarifying a point raised by Councillor Hare in relation to how any claim by 
Firoka would be reflected in the accounts, Mr Harris advised that the wording in 
the accounts would be likely to be similar to that for 2007/08. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
i. that the draft results for the year ended 31st March 2009 be noted; and 
 
ii. the progress of the audit and the timetable for completion of the statutory    
accounts be noted. 

 

Page 41



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

 
 

  

APBO07.
 

BUDGET POSITION OF THE TRUST AND BUDGET MONITORING 2009/10 - 2 
MONTH RESULTS TO 31 MAY 2009 

 The Chair asked for a brief introduction of the report. 
 
The Acting General Manager – Alexandra Palace – Mr Gill, advised the Board 
that the budget for the current year was originally drafted in October 2008 and 
anticipated a covenant from the trading Company of circa £1 million. This budget 
included a deficit funding figure from LBH of approx £1.7M. The Trust operating 
loss in this budget was reduced year on year by £77k. However, APTL operated 
in a highly competitive environment and the impact of the recession, together with 
increases in utility costs, had led to a reduction in the budgeted contribution from 
APTL from £1 million to £0.6 million. Mr Gill further advised that although the 
Charity was already reducing overall expenditure, the effect of this had been to 
increase the required deficit funding from LBH to £2.03 million.  
 
Mr Gill referred to the meeting of the Board on 19 March 2009 where it approved 
the Trust budget as prepared by the former General Manager making the request 
that LBH consider the position and grant additional funding. The London Borough 
of Haringey’s Cabinet meeting on 16 April 2009, considered the request for 
funding, but resolved not to grant the additional funding and requested that the 
Board consider what savings might be possible to reduce the overall deficit. 
Following confirmation of this by the LB Haringey’s Chief Financial Officer (LBH 
CFO) by letter on 28 April 2009 to the former General Manager and requesting 
that the Trust carry out a review of its costs to identify some efficiencies for 
2009/10 to attempt to stay within the £1.7m cash limit, Mr Gill advised that he had 
identified £238K from the £300K including  
 

higher than anticipated income from leases 
lower than anticipated contract costs 
agreement with LBH not to charge a fee for central admin 
savings achieved via tendering services 
removal of additional park improvements  
reduced reliance on external consultants 

 
Mr Gill apologised to the Board that the letter referred to as Appendix 2 (the letter 
from him of 19 June 2009 to the LBH CFO) had been omitted from the report, and 
had been circulated further to Board members.   The savings were stated in that 
letter and though they amounted to £238K this excluded pension provision.  
 
In respect of the pension issue and how this had arisen Mr Gill advised that the 
recent security tender had allowed a saving of £33k on the original estimates but 
the actuarial report for the pensions received on 14 May indicated that the original 
provision of £90k was inadequate and the true cost could well be £202k. This 
estimated cessation payment of £202k was in respect of three members of staff, 
one of whom was transferred to Mitie Security from the Trust under TUPE when 
the security service was put out to tender and another two who retired on medical 
grounds during the period of Mitie's contract. In order to enable the individual to 
retain their pension rights, Mitie entered into an admissions agreement with the 
LB Haringey pension scheme. Under the terms of the Trust's contract with Mitie, 

Page 42



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

the trust was liable for any shortfall in pension contributions should Mitie cease to 
be a contributing employer in the scheme. 
 
Mr Gill further advised that when the Trust had re-tendered the security contract, 
Mitie was unsuccessful. It was assumed that the individual concerned would be 
transferred under TUPE from Mitie to Work Facilities, the then successful bidder 
(and subsequently to Europa should the proposed novation of the contract in the 
exempt part of the proceedings be given approval). Hence the £202k had to be 
paid immediately - to reimburse Mitie for their share of the scheme's deficit which 
became payable on ceasing to contribute into the scheme. The estimate of £202k 
assumed that the new security provider would become a participating employer in 
the LBH scheme.  
 
Mr Gill advised that the £90K pension provision had been removed from the 
revised budget and was shown in the Budget Review as an exceptional item of 
£202K. The LBH CFO had been requested  to consider whether they would 
consider taking the £202K pension provision as an exceptional item, i.e. taking it 
out of the Trust’s revenue budget,  however if this request was not approved, the 
budget review would deliver savings of only £39K.  
 
Ms Downie reported to the Board that the current forecast for the end of June 
2009 had predicted a likely underspend of £85K but that this was fairly typical at 
this point in the financial year. The key elements of the underspend were 
currently £36K for repairs to buildings and roads, £11K for building and 
equipment maintenance, £10K depreciation and £5K for salaries.  Ms Downie 
further reported that the budget would require some re-profiling over the coming 
months, and the June and July budget position would circulated to the Board. 
 
The Chair thanked Ms Downie and Mr Gill for their introduction and asked if there 
were any points of clarification. 
 
Councillor C Harris sought clarification as to whether there were any future 
liability costs in terms of pensions.  In response Mr Gill advised that whilst there 
were always costs associated with transfer of employees it was difficult to 
quantify pension liabilities.  
 
Councillor Williams expressed his surprise that there had been a refusal by the 
Council’s Cabinet and highlighted that this was a particular issue that the Board 
needed to be made aware of as a matter of course and not over a month after 
such a decision had been taken, and asked what the position would be if the 
Trust was not able to find the required savings, and also the sequence of events 
in terms of the 2009/10 process. 
 
The Director of Corporate Resources – LB Haringey – Ms Parker, advised that in 
terms of the budget setting processes of the Trust and the Council these were 
somewhat out of kilter and there needed to be some synergy in the future as to 
when the Board considered its budget and then forwarded on to the Council its 
predicted shortfall. In the case of the 2009/10 budget, the Board had had a 
special meeting in March 2009 (19) and had noted the shortfall and subsequently 
requested the LBH to consider the deficit. The Council’s Cabinet had not then 
met until 16 April to consider this request – but this consideration was some 2 
months after the budget allocation had been agreed by the Council’s Cabinet.  

Page 43



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

The Cabinet was within its rights to refuse to make up the £300K shortfall, and on 
this particular occasion had done so. 
 
(Mr Tarpey arrived at 20.05hrs). 
 
The Trust Solicitor – Mr Harris advised that in previous years it had been the 
case, given the Trust’s intention to proceed and secure a holistic development 
approach the Council which had always agreed to meet the deficit on that basis. 
On this occasion, the Council had asked that the Trust carry out a savings 
exercise and that in effect some £200K had been identified initially and prior to 
the situation with the pension issue.  
 
In response to further clarification by Councillor Williams as to the identified Park 
savings Mr Gill advised that the figure included the extension to the Deer 
enclosure and improvements to Park paths. In terms of the Redston Field 
proposed path this matter would be reported to the Board in October 2009. 
 
In response to clarification and comments expressed by both Councillor Williams 
and Mr Liebeck Mr Gill comment that the path at Redston Field (estimate cost) 
was not an item that been included within the original budget estimates for park 
maintenance for 2009/10 but as an additional item of new expenditure that would 
only be possible if additional funding could be identified, therefore it was not part 
of the proposed cuts.  
 
Councillor Hare commented that the pension issue of £202K was quite an 
exceptional one and that it was, in his view, a making not of the Trust but rather 
because of the pension arrangement entered into with the LB Haringey. He felt 
that there was therefore a need to stress this to the LB Haringey, and ask for a 
special measure in this respect, as apart from this figure the required savings had 
been met. Mr Gill responded that this had been done via his letter to the LBH 
CFO stating that this was an exceptional cost and requesting that it be removed 
from the revenue budget. A response to this letter was awaited.  
 
In response to further clarification, Ms Downie advised that the figure was an 
actuarial valuation in relation to the trust’s pension scheme, and it was unlikely 
that there would a change in this situation on the part of the LBH CFO. 
 
Ms Parker also advised that should the Board agree the recommendations, 
whereby accepting the pension situation in terms of savings the Board would still 
be authorising the General Manager to try to achieve the best outcome for the 
Trust, and that there were identified savings in spite of the pension deficit issue. 
 
Councillor Thompson concurred with the view of Ms Parker and commented that 
the General Manager was going to seek to conclude matters in the best interest 
of the of the Charity, and that Mr Gill would report further to the Board. 
 
Councillor Harris commented on the expressed views of the LB CFO and advised 
that as they stated in her view such comments concurred that the Council was 
unlikely to take on the £202K deficit.  
 
In response to the points raised Mr Gill advised that the Council was being asked 
to make the £202K an ‘exceptional’ item and remove it from the revenue budget 

Page 44



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

and tag it as ‘an exceptional item’. 
 
In response to further concerns from Councillor Williams, the Chair reiterated the 
comments of Mr Gill in that the Redston path had never been included in the Park 
repair budget and that it was in effect an additional request for expenditure. It was 
not shown in Appendix 1 of the report because of that reason. 
 
Following further clarification the Chair asked that in addition to the Board 
agreeing to the recommendations as detailed in the report that officers provide 
the Board with a breakdown of the proposed park maintenance and removal of 
additional park improvements. 
 
The Chair then summarised and it was: 
 
RESOLVED  
 

i.        that the current position of the Trusts’ budget and the potential savings 
from the budget review be noted; 

 
ii.        that the situation regarding the pension provision be noted; and  

 
iii. that the Acting General Manager Alexandra Palace be instructed to 

conclude matters in relation to the situation as regards the pension 
provision  while achieving the best outcome for the Charity. 

 
 
 

  

APBO08.
 

REFORM OF GOVERNANCE OF APPCT 

 The Chair asked for a brief introduction of the report. 
 
The Acting General Manager Alexandra Palace – Mr Gill advised the Board that 
following on from the independent report commissioned by the LBH Director of 
Corporate Resources using section 151 officer powers in response to concerns 
raised about the process and implementation of the temporary Licence to Firoka,  
which identified some weaknesses in the APPCT governance, on 26 September 
2008 the former General Manager presented an action plan and identified that 
the key priorities would be the initial drafting of the code of governance and the 
scheme of delegation with the other actions then following on from this point. 
 
Mr Gill advised that the draft code of governance was presented to the Trustees 
at their meeting on 24 February 2009, where it was decided that approval be 
given to the holding of an away day to discuss the draft code of governance and 
associated schedules and that a special Alexandra Palace and Park Board be 
convened following the proposed away day in order to formally adopt the draft 
code of governance. Due to changes in management at the Trust and the 
difficulty of agreeing a date during the summer when all the attendees would be 
available, the Away Day was now confirmed Saturday 26 September 2009.  
 
Mr Gill reported that the draft code of Governance contained a substantial 
amount of detail (it was circulated to Trustees for comment during May 2009) and 

Page 45



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

although Trustees may not be asked to formally adopt it at this time, the 
documents may form the basis of a future sound governance structure. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Gill for his brief introduction and advised that Board 
Members had met informally earlier this evening to discuss how they saw the 
priorities for the Away day, which would be fed back to officers.  The Chair also 
advised that the attendance at the Away day would be extended to the three 
Consultative Committee representatives on the Board – Ms Paley, Mr Tarpey and 
Mr Willmott, and also the Observer on the Board – Mr Liebeck. 
 
The Chair advised that Members informally welcomed the broad outline prepared 
for the Away day and commented on the need to develop the Board’s vision, the 
relationship between the Board, its statutory advisory committee, and 
Consultative Committee. And the possible role of Independent Trustees. 
 
In response to a point of clarification from Councillor Hare, the Chair advised that 
future Away day invites would be extended to representatives of the Advisory, 
and Consultative Committees. 
 
The Chair then summarised and it was: 
 
RESOLVED 
 

 i.    That the previously agreed approach to achieving changes in  
governance be confirmed as the appropriate way forward, and that the 
forthcoming governance away day on 26 September 2009 will give 
further clarity;  

 
ii.       That the draft code of governance and associated schedules, previously 

presented to Trustees be further developed by the Acting General 
Manager to reflect the outlined approach outlined and in preparation for 
formal adoption at a later date; and 

 
iii.   That in respect of the forthcoming governance away day on 26     

September 2009 the attendance be  extended to the three Consultative 
Committee representatives on the Board – Ms Paley, Mr Tarpey and 
Mr Willmott, and also the Observer on the Board – Mr Liebeck – Chair 
of the Statutory Advisory Committee. 

 
 

APBO09.
 

BANK SIGNATORY CHANGES FOR 2009/10 

 RESOLVED 
 
That the resultant vacancy as Board Member signatory to the Trust’s bank 
Mandate be noted following the resignation of Councillor Dogus as a Board 
member, and that Councillor Nigel Scott be confirmed as replacement signatory 
on the Trust’s bank mandate.  
 

APBO10.
 

FORTHCOMING EVENTS 

 The Chair asked for a brief introduction of the report. 

Page 46



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

 
The Managing Director Alexandra Palace Trading Limited – Ms Kane, in a brief 
introduction advised that the events as listed showed in italics those events that 
provisional bookings had been received.  Ms Kane commented that the events 
list had now been varied to include other events happening around the Park such 
as the Farmers Market. 
 
Ms Kane highlighted the Knitting and Stitching Event, and the World Darts events 
which attracted upwards of 30,000 visitors over the period of each event. 
 
Mr Tarpey referred to the combined list of events and sought clarification as to 
whether employee roles had now merged in terms working for both the Trust and 
APTL.  In response, Ms Kane advised that there was no change in the 
employment status of either the Trust or APTL, or the delegated authority. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
That the forthcoming events to March 2010 as detailed in the report be noted. 
 

APBO11.
 

CONTINGENCY ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE ICE RINK 

 The Chair asked for a brief introduction of the report.  
 
The Acting General Manager Alexandra Palace – Mr Gill informed the Board that 
at the recent meeting of the APTL Board on 29 May 2009 it received a position 
report from its Leisure Services Manager which highlighted the threats to the 
longevity of the ice rink plant together with the ongoing deterioration of the facility.  
The report had also emphasised the importance of the ice rink facility to the 
delivery of bottom line profit, and set out a number of options for refurbishing the 
facility, giving some indicative costs for each. 
 
Mr Gill advised that the APTL Board had resolved to formally approach the Trust 
to request the following: 
 

• to Nominate a Project Manager to lead a project team to oversee the 
feasibility and delivery of major refurbishment works to the ice rink 
(subject to scope and funding) 

• to invest up to £7k to undertake core sample drilling and the production 
of a structural engineer’s report for the East Hall which will inform the 
scope of the project 

• Based on the conclusions of the engineer’s report, present worked-up 
options to APTL Board (4 Sept 09) with a view to formulating a capital 
investment bid to  be submitted to LB Haringey in the Sept/Oct ‘09 
bidding round 

 
The Chair thanked Mr Gill for his introduction and asked if there any points of 
clarification. 
 
Mr Tarpey commented that given that he represented the Alexandra Palace Ice 
Skating Association, he welcomed and was fully supportive of the proposals. In 
terms of the future of the Ice Rink and the difficulties with the existing Ice Plant, 
and the shifting of the Ice base, and the limitations of the size of the Ice Rink, he 

Page 47



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

sought clarification as to whether there was a possibility of redevelopment as the 
benefit of extending the existing rink by 7 yards would greatly increase 
opportunities for competition, though the existing facility did also host ice events 
including the Christmas shows.  
 
The Chair, in welcoming Mr Tarpey’s comments, asked that Mr Tarpey liaise with 
Mr Gill in terms of the expressed views. 
 
Councillor Hare sought clarification as to whether there had been attempts to 
attract funding through external sources such as sports grants or lottery funding. 
He also asked if there had been any discussion and contingency planning in the 
event of a catastrophic failure, or emergency rendering the closure of the existing 
facility, and whether there may be opportunities for a partnership arrangement 
with a commercial partner. 
 
In response, Mr Gill advised that in terms of external and/or sport grant, funding 
there was an officer within the recreation service at LB Haringey who had expert 
knowledge of external funding sources and he would discuss the possibilities 
further with them.  
 
The Managing Director APTL – Ms Kane advised that at the time of consideration 
by APTL discussions had centred on a catastrophic failure and that temporary 
options for any such event had been identified. It was a fact that within a matter of 
days an alternative facility and location would be provided in the event of 
emergency closure.  
 
The Chair then summarised and it was: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
i. That  in respect of a formal request from Alexandra Palace Trading Limited 

in respect of a contingency plan for the Ice Rink, approval be given to:- 
 

a. the nomination of a Project Manager to lead a project team to 
oversee the feasibility and delivery of major refurbishment works to 
the ice rink (subject to scope and funding); 

b. an investment  not exceeding £7k to undertake core sample drilling 
and the production of a structural engineer’s report for the East Hall 
which will inform the scope of the project; 

c. worked-up options based on the conclusions of the structural 
engineer’s report (as referred to in (b) above) being presented to 
the APTL Board on  4 Sept 2009 with a view to formulating a capital 
investment bid to  be submitted to LB Haringey in the September & 
October 2009 bidding round;  

 
ii that Alexandra Palace Trading Limited be formally advised of the decisions 

taken in (i) (a-c) above; and 
 
 
iii. that the General Manager Alexandra Palace be requested to explore 

possible external funding through sports grant funding or other sources 
and advise of the results of this to the meeting of the Board on 6 October 

Page 48



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

2009 as part of an update on contingency arrangements for the Ice Rink. 
 
 

APBO12.
 

PARK ACTIVITIES UPDATE 

 The Chair asked for a brief introduction of the report. 
 
The Park Manager Alexandra Palace – Mr Evison briefly outlined the park 
events as detailed in paragraphs 6.1-6.6 of the report.  
 
Mr Evison then referred to the Park Concession Workshop – which had been 
the subject of consideration at an Urgency panel of the Board on 29 April 
2009 where the panel had agreed to lease the workshop to tenderer 3, 
subject to receiving advice from the Alexandra Park and palace Advisory 
Committee.  The Panel had also delegated to officers and legal advisers the 
power to conclude negotiations and finalise lease terms once that advice had 
been received and considered.  The successful tenderer had proposed to 
refurbish the building for use as a children’s soft play centre and ancillary 
café, providing a high quality facility for the families in the local community. 
The Trust Solicitor had then prepared a draft lease for the building, which 
was forwarded to the tenant’s solicitor for consideration.  Mr Evison also 
advised that the agreement was subject to planning permission and the 
tenant submitted a planning application to LB Haringey on 15th May 2009. 
 
Mr Evison advised that the Advisory Committee considered this planning 
application at its meeting of 16th June 2009, as part of the process set out in 
the Alexandra Park and Palace Act 1985, and the deliberation of the 
Advisory Committee were before the Board, and circulated under Item 14 – 
Resolutions of the Advisory Committee. 
 
The Chair asked that Mr Liebeck give some response as the |Chair of the 
Advisory Committee.   
 
Mr Liebeck commented that the discussions at the Advisory Committee had 
centred on the business had described itself as an “indoor adventure and soft 
play area with small café” when in fact it appeared to be a small indoor play area 
with (larger) café area.  Comments had also been expressed that the boundaries 
for the site were unclear on the map provided and how and when it was intended 
to extend the play area to the outside area.  Mr Liebeck also advised that the 
Advisory Committee consider consulting the long established businesses in the 
vicinity which may be affected by this proposal.  
 
Following further discussion, it was clarified by Mr Evison that whilst it was likely 
that in terms of any proposed usage or proposed development outside of the 
facility the Lessee would be subject to submitting a further planning application 
and any variation to the proposed lease would be subject to the permission of the 
Board.   
 
In respect of clarification from members as to how the resolutions of the Advisory 
Committee should be dealt with the Trust Solicitor Mr Harris advised that as with 
previous practice the Board either accepted or rejected the advice of the Advisory 
Committee. In the case of the 3 informal resolutions from the Advisory Committee 

Page 49



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

to the Board on this occasion with regard to the 1st resolution  - the Board was 
neither able to accept or reject the resolution as this was a statement that the 
Board was unable to give a view on. In respect of resolution 2 the boundaries of 
the site would identified within the draft lease to be entered into, and in respect of 
resolution 3 the proposal was not a practical one as whilst the Board would 
consult with its Advisory Committee – it would be for the Advisory Committee to 
advise local businesses or representative groups on its Committee as to the 
proposals – and the time it would take for the Board to consult all businesses in 
the vicinity would not be practicable or in any way serve as a benefit.  
 
Following further discussion and clarification, the Chair summarised and it was: 
 
RESOLVED 
 

i.         that the report be noted; 
 
 

ii.       that in respect of the 3 resolutions from the Advisory Committee of 16 
June 2009 in respect of the Workshop Café the Advisory Committee be 
informed in the following terms: 

 
i. That the business described itself as an “indoor adventure and 

soft play area with small café” when in fact it appeared to be a 
small indoor play area with (larger) café area.   

 
That the Board was neither able to accept or reject the 
resolution as this was a statement that the Board was unable to 
give a view on. 

 
ii. That the boundaries for the site were unclear on the map 

provided and how and when it was intended to extend the play 
area to the outside area.   

 
The boundaries of the site would identified within the draft lease 
to be entered into   

 
iii. That the Board consider consulting the long established 

businesses in the vicinity which may be affected. by this 
proposal 

 
That the proposal be rejected as whilst the Board would consult 
with its Advisory Committee – it would either practical or feasible 
for the Board to carry out such consultation and the proposals 
had already been consulted upon with all similar users within the 
Park, and indeed the Advisory Committee representatives 
through the Advisory Committee.  

 
 
 
  
 

APBO13. GREAT HALL CAPACITY - APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF LICENCE 

Page 50



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

 FOR INCREASED CAPACITY 
 The Chair asked for a brief introduction of the report. 

 
The Acting General Manager – Alexandra Palace – Mr Gill advised the Board of 
the considerations of the Advisory Committee albeit informally at it its meeting on 
16 June 2009 and the subsequent resolution of the Advisory Committee to the 
Board – circulated under Item 14. 
 
Following a brief introduction by the Managing Director – Alexandra Palace 
Trading Limited - Ms Kane in respect of the application for variation of licence to 
the LB Haringey for a variation of the existing licence to increase capacity over 
10,000 – with events lasting till 23.00hrs but not all night, the Chair asked that the 
Trust Solicitor – Mr Harris advise on views expressed by the Advisory Committee.  
 
Mr Harris reiterated his earlier advice in respect of previous practices of the 
Board considering the resolutions of the Advisory Committee.  In respect of the 
resolutions of the Advisory Committee in terms of the Great Hall capacity in terms 
of the request by the Advisory Committee that it be consulted on any likely 
increases in the number of large events in a relatively short period of time before 
any commitments are made – that this recommendation be accepted by the 
Board but that it would not be possible to carry out consultation with all residents 
on all such events and give advance notice but that there would be publicity given 
on the website. 
 
Following further clarification, the Chair summarised and it was: 
 
RESOLVED   
 

i.          That the report and proposals be noted and welcomed; 
 

ii.      That in respect of the resolutions from the Advisory Committee of 16 
June 2009 as regards the proposed variation of the licence to increase 
capacity in the Great Hall, the Advisory Committee be informed in the 
following terms: 

 
           The SAC asked to be informed of  large events in future 

Forthcoming Events papers and if APTL anticipated that there 
was likely to be a significant increase in the number of  large 
events in a relatively short period of time, that this should be 
brought to the attention of this Committee prior to any 
commitment being made. 

 
That this recommendation be accepted by the Board but that it 
would not be possible to carry out consultation with all residents 
on all such events and give advance notice but that there would 
be publicity given on the website. 

 
 
 

  

APBO14.
 

MINUTES 

Page 51



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

 1.        Minutes of the meetings of the Board held on (a) 24 February 
2009, and the special meetings held on (b) 19 March & (c) 16 
April 2009, and minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park 
Panel held on (d) 3 March, (e) 29 April 2009; 

 
 Councillor Williams referred to the minutes of the meeting                                                 
of  the Board of 19 March 2009 and reference to the Council 
formally discharging the debt and asked whether this would be 
requested. 
 
Ms Parker responded that the matter would be considered by the 
Full Council on 20 July 2009. Councillor Williams commented that 
this was a matter that the Board should have been advised.  

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the Minutes of the meetings of the Board held on 24 February 
2009, and the special meetings held on 19 March & 16 April 2009, 
and of the Alexandra Palace and Park Panel held on 3 March & 29 
April 2009 be agreed as accurate records of the proceedings. 
 

 
2.    Minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Consultative 

Committee held on  17 February 2009 and 23 June 2009  
 

RESOLVED 
 
i.        That the Minutes of the meeting of the Alexandra Palace and 

Park Consultative Committee held on 17 February 2009 be 
agreed as accurate records of the proceedings; 

ii.    That it be noted that the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Alexandra Palace and Park Consultative Committee held on 
17 February 2009 were not available. 

 
 

3.       Minutes of the Urgency Committee of the Alexandra Park and 
Palace Advisory Committee held on 21 May 2009  to 
consider any recommendations contained therein  and  the 
minutes of the Advisory Committee held on 16 June 2009  

 
 

The Clerk to the Board – Mr Hart advised that the minutes of the 
Urgency Sub-Committee of the Advisory Committee of 21 May 
2009, in respect of the Heartlands School application was referred 
for consideration, as well as the reiterated view of the Advisory 
Committee of 16 June 2009. Mr Hart also referred to the advice of 
the Trust Solicitor which he had supplied in relation to the referral, 
which should be considered in tandem. 
 
The Chair advised that the resolution of the Urgency Sub-
Committee was: 
 

Page 52



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

That the Alexandra Palace and Park Board be asked to note  the 
main points of concern of the Advisory Committee in respect of the 
Heartlands Outline Planning Application, as outlined  in the 8 bullet  
points detailed above, and, in particular, the following concerns: 

 
(1)   This Committee endorses the widely  held views of 

local residents, that the scale and size of   the 
development, and, in particular,  the height of the 
buildings, are excessive, and that  there will be a 
significant PERMANENT ( not just “long term”) 
adverse effect on the cherished and exceptional  
vistas of the surrounding area from the Palace , and 

 
(2)   The apparent lack of provision in the plans for a more 

satisfactory and substantial means of pedestrian 
access from the Heartlands site to the Palace and 
Park. 

 
The Chair further referred to the comments of the Advisory 
Committee of 16 June 2009 which stated: 
 
That the Chair of the Advisory Committee urge the Alexandra 
Palace and Park Board (the Board) to give due consideration to the 
views expressed by the Urgency Sub-Committee on the planning 
application relating to the Haringey Heartlands Development, which 
this committee endorsed. 
 
The Chair asked that the Trust Solicitor – Mr Harris give an 
explanation of his comments that had been circulated. 
 
Mr Harris responded that in respect of the referral from the Advisory 
Committee and its Urgency Sub-Committee the Heartlands 
Application was on land clearly not in the ownership of the trustees 
and therefore it was not within the remit of the Advisory Committee 
to refer the issue to the Board for its consideration.  
 
The Chair asked if there were any points of clarification. 
 
Councillor C. Harris commented that having read the Advice of the 
Trust Solicitor it was perfectly clear that the application clearly fell 
outside the remit of the Advisory Committee’s ambit of referral and 
therefore it should be advised of this. 
 
Mr Liebeck commented that he would beg to differ and that the 
advice was extremely narrow his view as the application was 
impacting on the Park and Palace long term and therefore was of 
considerable importance and that in this respect local concerns had 
been expressed and the Advisory Committee had taken account of 
them., and were asking the Board to consider these and refer them 
on.  
 
Mr Harris commented that whilst there may be expressed views the 

Page 53



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

appropriate channel was via the Local Authority’s planning service. 
He reiterated his earlier comment that as such the consideration 
was outside the remit of the Advisory Committee to refer such 
matters to the Board, and the Board to give consideration thereto. 
 
In response to points of clarification, and a suggestion from 
Councillor Hare as to whether the Board could request 
consideration of the Heartlands Application, and comments from 
Councillor C. Harris that the proposed development would actually 
block out the rather unsightly view of the railway tracks etc, and 
confirmation from the Acting General Manager - Mr Gill that as yet 
the Board had not been consulted on the planning application, and 
how this now might be requested  the Chair summarised  and it 
was: 
 
RESOLVED 
 
i. that the resolutions of the Statutory Advisory Committee of 

16 June 2009, and its Urgency Sub-Committee be 
responded to as the Board’s response: 

 
that the Board would not comment on the referral from the 
Advisory Committee and it Urgency Sub-Committee in 
respect of the Heartlands Application as the site application 
was on land clearly not in the ownership of the trustees and 
therefore it was not in the remit of the Advisory Committee to 
refer the issue to the Board for its consideration, and that any 
such comments should be referred directly the LB Haringey 
Planning Service; 
 

ii. That the General Manager Alexandra Palace be asked to 
ascertain if the Heartlands Application would be put the 
Board for comment and advise the Board accordingly of any 
required timescales.  

 
  

APBO15.
 

NEW ITEMS OF  UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 

 There were no items of urgent unrestricted business. 
 
 

APBO16.
 

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 RESOLVED 
 

That the Public and Press be excluded form the proceedings as Items 12-17 
are exempt as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972; 
namely information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege 
could be maintained in legal proceedings, information relating to any 
individual, information likely to reveal the identity of an individual, and 
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information). 

Page 54



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

 
At this point in the proceedings the Chair MOVED and it was agreed nemine 
contradicente that the meeting adjourn for a 5 minute period. 

The meeting adjourned at 21.25hrs and reconvened at 21.30hrs. 
 
At this point the Chair MOVED and it was agreed nemine contradicente  that 
the order of business be varied to next consider Item 22 – Exempt Minutes. 

SUMMARY OF EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
 

APBO17.
 

MINUTES 

 i. AGREED the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 
24 February 2009, and the special meeting held on 16 April 2009, 
and exempt minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Panel held 
on 3 March, 29 April 2009; 

           ii.      AGREED  the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of 16 April 2009 –              
APB081 subject to the comments made regarding the matters 
arising; and 

ii. AGREED the Minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Panel of 3 
June 2009 be agreed subject to an amendment  

 
  

APBO18.
 

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - ALEXANDRA PALACE TRADING LIMITED - 
APPOINTMENT AND RECRUITMENT 

  
AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

APBO19.
 

ALEXANDRA PALACE SECURITY CONTRACT 

 AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 

APBO20.
 

INTERIM STAFFING ARRANGEMENTS - ALEXANDRA PALACE (TO 
FOLLOW) 

 Mr Gill left the proceedings for the duration of this item. 
 
AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
At this point in the meeting Mr Gill re-entered the proceedings . 
 
Mr Harris advised that he would withdraw from the proceedings for consideration 
of the next two items, and withdrew accordingly. 
 
 

APBO21.
 

CLARIFICATION OF LEGAL MATTERS 

 AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Page 55



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 
TUESDAY, 30 JUNE 2009 

 

APBO22.
 

TENDERING PROCESS FOR OBTAINING LEGAL SERVICES (TO FOLLOW) 

 AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

APBO23.
 

NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT  BUSINESS 

 There were no items of exempt urgent business. 
 
 
There being no further business to discuss the meeting ended at 22.20hrs. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR PAT EGAN 
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 56



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, 2 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 
* PRESENT         DRAFT  

Councillors *C. Harris, *Peacock  & *Williams 
 
 Egan, Hare, Scott & Thompson  
 

 
Non-Voting 
Representatives: 

Ms V Paley, *Mr M. Tarpey, Mr N. Willmott 

 
Observer: Mr D. Liebeck 
 
Also present: 
 

MINUTE 

NO. 

 

SUBJECT/DECISION 

 

APBO24.

 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 At this point in the proceedings – the Clerk to the Board – Mr Hart advised that in 
the absence of the Chair and Vice-Chair it was necessary to seek nomination 
amongst those members present for a Chair for the remainder of the duration of 
the meeting. 
 
Councillor Williams nominated Councillor Peacock as Chair for the duration of the 
meeting. 
 
There being no other nominations Councillor Peacock took the Chair nemine 
contradicente. 
 

COUNCILLOR S. PEACOCK IN THE CHAIR 

 

Apologies for absence had been received on behalf of Councillors Egan, 
Thompson, Hare, and Mr Willmott. 
 
At this point in the proceedings, Councillor Scott entered the meeting. The Clerk – 
Mr Hart advised Councillor Scott that although a Member of the Board, on this 
occasion as appointed Director of APTL he was not able to participate in the 
meeting during consideration of items 4 and 6, as this would be a personal and 
prejudicial interest. 
 
Councillor Scott noted the advice and withdrew from the proceedings. 
 
NOTED 

 
 

APBO25.

 
URGENT BUSINESS 

 There were no items of urgent business. 
 
NOTED 

 

Page 57



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, 2 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

APBO26.

 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

APBO27.

 
RESOLUTION OF THE DIRECTORS OF ALEXANDRA PALACE TRADING 

LIMITED - REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 
 In a brief introduction of the report the Head of Finance Alexandra Palace – Ms 

Downie – advised the Board that in respect of the resolutions of the Directors of 
Alexandra Palace Trading Limited – it was necessary for the Trustees to now 
consider the draft resolutions as detailed in Appendices 1 & 2 attached to the 
circulated report. 
 
Ms Downie also advised that it would be necessary to then convey the 
considerations of the Board to the APTL Board meeting on 4 September 2009. 
APTL had as yet not considered their accounts – which it would do so on 4 
September. The financial statements of APTL (circulated as exempt documents) 
would be considered by the APTL Board in tandem with the statements. 
 
In response to points of clarification from Councillor Williams the Trust Solicitor – 
Mr Harris advised that the Alexandra Palace and Park Board was not being 
asked to consider and approve the financial statements, nor the actual 
statements of the Directors of APTL. The locus of the Board was only to receive 
and note the resolutions of the Directors of APTL and authorise the General 
Manager Alexandra to notify APTL of this. 
 
Following further clarification by Board of specific points and the Clerk advising of 
the recommendation for the Board to resolve upon, the Chair summarised and it 
was: 
 
 

RESOLVED 

 
that in its capacity as shareholder of Alexandra Palace Trading Limited (APTL) 
the Board receives and notes the detailed resolution proposed by the Directors of 
APTL (as detailed in Appendix 1 of the circulated report) and authorises the Head 
of Finance Alexandra Palace to convey this action to the Directors of APTL prior 
to or during consideration of the said resolutions at a forthcoming meeting of 
APTL on 4 September 2009.  
 
 

APBO28.

 
EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 RESOLVED 

 
That the press and public be excluded the from the meeting for consideration of 
Item 6 as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government Act 
1985); namely information relating to the business or financial affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information). 
 

SUMMARY OF EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL PROCEEDINGS  

 

Page 58



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, 2 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 
 

APBO29.

 
RESOLUTION OF THE DIRECTORS OF ALEXANDRA PALACE TRADING 

LIMITED - REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 
 AGREED to receive circulated documents. 

 
 

 
The meeting ended at 18.26hrs. 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR S PEACOCK 
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



UNRESTRICTED MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE - TUESDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 
Nominated Members: 
 
Alexandra Palace Amateur Ice Skating Club   * Mr. M. Tarpey 
Alexandra Palace Allotments Association  * Mr. C. Mahony 
Alexandra Palace Angling Association   * Mr. K. Pestell 
Alexandra Palace Organ Appeal    * Mr.J. Apperley 
Alexandra Palace Television Society    Mr. J. Thompson 
Alexandra Residents’ Association    * Ms. C. Hayter 
Bounds Green and District Residents’ Association * Mr. K. Ranson 
Friends of Alexandra Park     * Mr. G. Hutchinson 
Friends of the Alexandra Palace Theatre   * Mr. C. Richell 
Hornsey Historical Society     *          Mr.J.O’Callaghan 
Muswell Hill and Fortis Green Association  * Ms D. Feeney 
Muswell Hill Metro Group     * Mr. J. Boshier 
New River Action Group     * Miss R. MacDonald 
Palace View Residents’ Association   * Ms V. Paley 
Union of Construction, Allied Trades and Technicians  Mr. J. McCue 
Warner Estate Residents’ Association    * Mr. J. Noutch 
 
*Members present: 
 
Appointed Members: 
 
*Councillor P. Egan (Chair) 
*Councillor B. Hare 
Councillor C. Harris 
*Councillor S. Peacock 
*Councillor N. Scott 
*Councillor S. Thompson 
Councillor N. Williams 
 
Apologies 

 
Councillor C. Harris and Williams 
 

Also In Attendance:  
 
Mr A. Gill – Interim General Manager, Alexandra Palace  
Mr M. Evison – Park Manager, Alexandra Palace 
Mr M De’Ath – Acting Head of Operations and Events, Alexandra Palace 
Ms N Cole – Clerk to the Committee 
 
And 1 member of the public 
 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 

APCC13. 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY) 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor C. Harris, Councillor 
Williams, Professor Hudson (Warner Estate Residents’ Association), Nigel 
Willmott (Friends of Alexandra Palace Theatre) and Mike Tarpey (Alexandra 
Palace Amateur Ice Skating Club). 
 

Page 61



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 2 

The Chair welcomed Colin Mahony who replaced Steve Ballard representing the 
Allotments Association on the Consultative Committee.  The Committee 
expressed thanks to Steve Ballard for his work with the Consultative Committee. 
 

APCC14. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 Councillor Thomson declared a personal interest as a member of the Council’s 
Pensions and Licensing Committees.   Councillor Scott also declared in interest 
as a member of the Licensing Committee. 
 
There were no items relating to Pensions or Licensing on the agenda. 
 

APCC15. 
 

URGENT BUSINESS 

 There were no items of urgent business. 
 

APCC16. 
 

ASSOCIATION PRESENTATION 

 The Committee received the briefing introduced by Kevin Pestell, Chair of the 
Alexandra Palace Angling Association.  Full copies of the Angling Association 
Profile document were made available at the meeting.  
 
Mr Pestell highlighted that the Angling Association was unique in that it: had a 
large number of members for a club that did not own its own pond; was open to 
youngsters from other boroughs and Mr Pestell himself was one of few fully 
licensed angling coaches.  
 
Mr Pestell stated that the Angling Association was very happy with the progress 
of the boating lake improvements and particularly the work of Mr Evison 
(Alexandra Park Manager) and intended to continue to work closely with 
Alexandra Palace and Park. 
 
In response to questions from the Committee Mr Pestell explained that although 
fishing was not permitted in the New River (which would run through the 
Heartlands Development) it would be a good spot for fishing.   
 
Mr Pestell was asked whether barbed or barbless hooks were preferred and 
stated that as a coach he would always recommend barbless hooks but 
emphasised that even with barbless hooks damage could still be caused to fish. 
 
Mr Pestell was asked about the incident of a large pike in the pond some years 
ago and explained that it had been a small pike but emphasised that even a small 
pike would take ducklings, which had been going missing at the time. 
 
The Committee noted that the Park Manager was planning to undertake a stock 
check of the fish in the boating lake and was liaising with the Angling Association 
and the Environment Agency in order to add more fish to the lake. 
 
On behalf of the Committee the Chair thanked Mr Pestell and congratulated the 
Angling Association for the good work it did and reminded Mr Pestell that 
organisations could apply for funding from the “Making the Difference” fund. 

Page 62



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 3 

 
 

APCC17. 
 

MINUTES 

 (a)  Consultative Committee -  23rd June 2009  
 
 RESOLVED 

 
That minutes of the meeting of the Consultative Committee held on  23rd 
June 2009 be confirmed as a correct record subject to the following 
amendments: 
 
Miss Rachael Macdonald (New River Action Group) be recorded as 
present and Mr Tarpey (Amateur Ice-Skating Club) be recorded as giving 
an apology for absence (rather than an apology for lateness). 

 
(b) Alexandra Palace and Park Board - 16th April 2009 and 30th June 2009  
 
 RESOLVED 
 

That the minutes of the meetings of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board 
held on 16th April 2009 and 30th June 2009 be noted. 

 
(c) Alexandra Park and Palace Advisory Committee held on 16th June 

2009 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That the minutes of the Alexandra Park and Palace Advisory Committee 
held on 16th June 2009 be noted. 

 
(d) Alexandra Palace and Park Panel held on 3rd June 2009 
 
 RESOLVED 
 

That the draft minutes of the meeting of the Alexandra Palace and Park 
Panel held on 3rd June 2009 be noted. 

 
 

APCC18. 
 

PARK ACTIVITIES UPDATE 

 The Committee received the report which detailed park activities. 
 
Mr Evison (Park Manager) introduced the report and drew the Committee’s 
attention to the Environment Agency Urban Fisheries Grant and thanked Mr 
Pestell for his help in obtaining this funding.  Mr Evison explained that the boating 
lake had two “agitators” which operated at different timesand aerated the water.  
This helped move water around and improved the quality of water.  Mr Pestell 
highlighted that the fish in the lake were growing. 
  
Mr Evison also thanked Gordon Hutchinson and the Friends of Alexandra Park 

Page 63



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 4 

for keeping the Park’s information centre open through the summer.   
 
The Committee questioned how many Parks in the Borough had obtained Green 
Flag status.  Mr Gill (Interim General Manager, Alexandra Palace) explained that 
out of 146 Parks in Haringey (and 32 of those were deemed major parks) 11 had 
Green Flag status and 3 had Green Pennant award. 
 
In response to the Committee’s concerns about the Workshop Building lease and 
the possibility of the encroachment onto open space in the Park the Chair 
explained that negotiations were currently taking place and Trustees would be 
shown the final lease.  Mr Gill stated that the amount of land provided in the final 
lease would be significantly less than had been originally shown in the planning 
application documents. 
 
The Committee enquired as to how the Park was dealing with gardens which 
encroached onto the Park’s land.  Mr Evison stated that Haringey Council’s 
approach to encroachment on park-land would be adopted and that a report 
would be taken to a future Board meeting on this matter. 
 
In response to the Committee’s concerns about water running down the hard 
surfaces in the Park Mr Evison explained that works were being done to improve 
this. 
 
The Committee thanked Mr Evison and congratulated him on the flower planting 
in the Park and the front of the Palace, which was visually pleasing.  
 

APCC19. 
 

FORTHCOMING EVENTS 

 The Committee received the report detailing forthcoming events at the Palace.   
 
The report was introduced by Mark De’Ath (Acting Head of Operations and 
Events, Alexandra Palace) who drew the Committee’s attention to the 
forthcoming fireworks event which was currently being planned and the busy 
period for exhibitions, which was between January and March. 
 
Mr De’Ath informed members that the variation for the Palace’s license to be 
extended to allow a capacity of 10,400 in to the Great Hall had been approved by 
the Council’s Licensing Committee.  
 
In response to members questions Mr De’Ath explained that Alexandra Palace 
Trading Limited (APTL) regularly approached the organisers of the Great British 
Beer Festival  who said that they were happy with the venue currently used (Earls 
Court).  It was suggested that organisers of the North London Beer Festival also 
be approached. 
 
In response to Committee members suggestion that there was scope to improve 
on the exam trade, Mr De’Ath explained that there had been a police inspectors 
exam attended by 900  people that day and that 3,500 people would be attending 
to take police sergeants exams in the near future. 
 
Mr Hutchinson reminded the Committee that places on the bat-walk would be 

Page 64



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 5 

limited and to contact info@friendsofalexandrapark.org.uk to book places. 
 

APCC20. 
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 (a) Licensing application to increase the Great Hall Capacity 
 

The license application had been approved on 7th September and in 
response to questions from the Committee Mr. Gill explained that there 
had been 3 conditions attached to the license for increased capacity in the 
Great Hall, which the Palace could easily meet: 

• At times when there is a simultaneous event in the ice rink, the 
capacity for concerts in the Great Hall will be reduced to ensure 
appropriate numbers are able to evacuate from exit D. 

• Toilet units are to be in place to supplement those already present 
in the Great Hall.  

• Security guards are to be positioned at the Dukes Avenue exit to 
ensure the steady dispersal of crowds for an hour after each event 
ends. 

 
(b) Trustees’ Away Day – Governance Review 
 

The Chair informed the Committee that Board Trustees, Board 
representatives (of the Consultative Committee) and the Chair of the 
Advisory Committee would be attending an “away-day” at the Palace on 
Saturday 26th September to continue work on the review of governance of 
the Alexandra Palace.   
 
There would be a Stakeholders Forum 24th October 2009 to which 
Consultative Committee members would be invited for their input.   
 
Further meetings and consultation would take place including Haringey 
Council and other key stakeholders. 
 

(c) Open House Event 
 

The Committee questioned why the London Open House Event on 19th 
September would only cover the Studio when previously it had been 
advertised that the Theatre would also be open.  Mr. Gill explained that 
there had been a mistake on the Open House brochure and the Theatre 
would not be open due to public safety, however, visitors would be able to 
see the theatre from a Perspex screen from the foyer. 
 
Access to the Studios on 19th September would be limited and on a first 
come first served basis. Mr. Gill informed the committee that a press 
release had been issued giving the correct details of the event 
 

(d) Matters highlighted by Mr. O’Callaghan 
 
Jacob O’Callaghan (Hornsey Historical Society) raised the following 
matters: 
 

Page 65



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 6 

i. Timescales for including items on agendas and delivery of 
minutes 

 
In response to Mr. O’Callaghan’s concerns the Chair highlighted 
that letters were sent to Consultative Committee members prior to 
the agenda planning process inviting them to suggest items for 
discussion.  Draft minutes of meetings were published on the 
Council’s website and members would be emailed or sent hard 
copies once available. 
 

ii. Advisory Committee 
  

The Chair agreed with Mr. O’Callaghan’s concerns that there was a 
need to hold occasional joint meetings of Alexandra Palace 
Committees and highlighted that this would be a consideration 
during the governance review. 
 

iii. Theatre and Television Studios 
 

Mr. O’Callaghan drew attention to the poor repair of parts of the 
Palace building and emphasised that the Council (as a Corporate 
Trustee) had a responsibility to provide funding for essential repairs.  
 
Mr Gill informed the Committee that the priority was to ensure that 
operation of the Palace met fire and health and safety regulations.  
Mr Gill stated that the issue of safety in the Theatre was not only 
restricted to weather-damage and a damaged ceiling but also due 
to the fact that two supporting beams had slipped and were floating.  
The cost of repairs would not be covered by hiring the Theatre out 
but other funding options would be presented to the Board in the 
future and these might include national organisations.  There was a 
need to devise a strategy for the Palace and Park site, which would 
link into the governance review. 

 
iv. Haringey Heartlands Development 
 
 Mr O’Callaghan and other Committee members expressed 

concerns about the scale and size and height of the buildings and 
their impact on the Park as an amenity and conservation area.  In 
response, the Chair stated that any individual had the right to 
express a view on the planning application proposals and 
Councillors in attendance encouraged this. 

 
 The Chair agreed that the Haringey Heartlands application should 

be considered by the Board, once it was established when the item 
was expected to be considered by the Planning Committee. 

 

APCC21. 
 

FUTURE MEETINGS 

 17th November 2009 
16th February 2010 

Page 66



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 7 

8th April 2010  
 

 
The meeting ended at 20:55 hrs 
 
COUNCILLOR PATRICK EGAN 
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PARK AND PALACE ADVISORY COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 1 SEPTEMBER 2009 

PRESENT: * denotes attendee 

NOMINATED BY LOCAL RESIDENTS’ ASSOCIATIONS 

 
*Ms J. Hutchinson : Alexandra Residents’ Association 
*Ms. M. Myers : Muswell Hill and Fortis Green 

Association  
*Mr D. Heathcote  Muswell Hill and Fortis Green 

Association 
Ms J. Baker : Palace Gates Residents’ Association 

Vacancy  Palace View Residents’ Association 
Ms S. Rees (deputy)  Palace View Residents’ Association 
*Mr. D. Frith : The Rookfield Association 
*Mr. D. Liebeck  : Warner Estate Residents’ Association 
*Mr H. Aspden : Warner Estate Residents’ Association 

 
APPOINTED MEMBERS 

 
*Councillor S. Oatway : Alexandra Ward   
 Councillor A. Demirci : Bounds Green Ward 
*Councillor M Davies : Fortis Green Ward 
*Councillor M. Whyte : Hornsey Ward 
 Councillor S. Rainger : Muswell Hill Ward 
 Councillor M. Newton : Council Wide appointment 
 Councillor J. Patel : Council Wide appointment 
 Vacancy   

 
 
Also in attendance: 
 
Mr Andrew Gill – Interim General Manager – Alexandra Palace 
Mr Mark Evison – Park Manager – Alexandra Palace 
Ms Rebecca Kane  – Managing Director, Alexandra Palace Trading Limited 
Ms Natalie Cole – Clerk to the Committee 
 
 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

 

APSC14. 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Newton and an apology for 
lateness was received from Councillor Davies. 
 
The meeting started at 19:40 hrs. 
 

APSC15. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 There were no declarations of interest in relation to items on the agenda. 
 

APSC16. 
 

MINUTES 

Page 69



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PARK AND PALACE ADVISORY COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 1 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 Minutes of the Advisory Committee held on 16th June 2009 
 
Committee members expressed dissatisfaction that the Advisory Committee’s 
views on the Heartlands Planning application were rejected by the Board and 
considered not to be within the Committee’s remit.  The main concerns of the 
Advisory Committee had been about the impact of the development on the view 
from the Palace which Committee members considered to be relevant. 
 
Committee members also expressed concern at the Board’s responses to the 
Advisory Committee’s comments about the Park Workshop Building and            
that the Board had ignored the resolutions of the Advisory Committee. 
 
With regard to minute no. APSC04 - Appointment of Members to the Alexandra 
Park and Palace Statutory Advisory Urgency Sub-Committee for the Municipal 
Year 2009/10 – the Committee noted that Councillor Dobbie was no longer a 
member of the Advisory Committee. 
 
Councillor Oatway nominated Councillor Whyte to take Councillor Dobbie’s place 
on the Statutory Advisory Urgency Sub-Committee.  This was seconded by 
Councillor Davies and it was: 
 
RESOLVED 
  
That Councillor Whyte be appointed to the Urgency Sub-Committee of the  
Advisory Committee for the Municipal Year 2009/10. 
 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board held on 16th 
April 2009 and 30th June 2009 
 
The draft minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board held on 30th June 2009 
were tabled. 
 
Andrew Gill (Interim General Manager, Alexandra Palace) brought members 
attention to minute number APB007 which deferred consideration of the Redston 
Park proposed pathway.  Mr Gill informed the Committee that Board members had 
attended a Redston Park site visit on 23rd June and that the matter would be 
considered by the Board in October 2009.  Mr Gill further advised that there was 
no budget available for this work. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
That the minutes of the draft minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board held 
on 16th April 2009 and 30th June 2009 be noted. 
 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the Consultative Committee held on 23rd June 2009 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the draft minutes of the Consultative Committee held on 23rd June 2009 be 
noted. 

Page 70



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PARK AND PALACE ADVISORY COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 1 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Alexandra Palace and Park Panel held on 3rd 
June 2009 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the draft minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Panel held on 3rd June 
2009 be noted. 
 

APSC17. 
 

PARK ACTIVITIES UPDATE 

 The Committee received the report updating on park activities, presented by Mark 
Evison (Park Manager). 
 
Members of the Committee congratulated officers and Friends of the Park, 
particularly Gordon Hutchinson, who played a large part in helping the Park to 
obtain Green Flag status for the second year. 
 
The Chair highlighted some water drainage problems in the Redston Field area of 
the Park.  Mr Evison stated that this could be due to the leaking fire main and 
agreed to investigate. 
 
Mr Evison reported that the operator of the Workshop Building had obtained 
planning permission and relevant parties were in the process of agreeing the 
lease.  Committee members complained that the boundary in the map provided as 
part of the planning application seemed different to the map provided in the lease.  
Mr Evison stated that the area shown on a plan as part of the lease, was likely to 
become smaller when the lease was agreed. 
 
Mr Evison informed members that the Park would be responsible for cutting the 
grass on the land within the fenced area of the Workshop Building.  This area, 
however, will be exclusive to children using the Little Dinosaurs project in the 
Workshop Building although it was still part of the public park.  The tenant would 
be responsible for maintaining security in this area. 
 
The Committee were informed that Adidas had offered to supply the Borough with 
Adizone outdoor gym equipment at the Newlands Road playing field area which 
would be open to the public. There would be only 12 Adizone gyms in London and 
installation and maintenance would be free of charge to Alexandra Palace.  
Trustees and the Advisory and Consultative Committees would be consulted and 
installation would be subject to a planning application and consultation with the 
local community. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

APSC18. 
 

FORTHCOMING EVENTS 

 The Committee received the report on forthcoming events presented by Rebecca 
Kane (Managing Director, Alexandra Palace Trading Limited (APTL)). 

Page 71



MINUTES OF THE ALEXANDRA PARK AND PALACE ADVISORY COMMITTEE. 
TUESDAY, 1 SEPTEMBER 2009 

 

 
Ms Kane highlighted that no events consisting of more than 10,000 people had 
been organised except for the fireworks event which was expected to be attended 
by 30-40,000 people. 
 
The Knitting & Stitching and Darts events were currently being planned. Ms Kane 
emphasised that APTL relied on hosting 3 to 4 concerts each year but only one 
concert had been booked so far (with a further 20 days available) and that the 
licence application for additional capacity in the Great Hall should improve the 
number of bookings. 
 
Ms Kane reported that the Christmas Pantomime was always a popular event and 
APTL was considering how the ice-rink foyer could be used; a Christmas Market 
was one of the options.  
 
Ms Kane informed the Committee that raising capital to improve and update the 
ice-rink freezing mechanism was a priority.  The gas which was currently used to 
freeze the ice would soon become obsolete. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

APSC19. 
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 Before the Chair considered any other business he asked the officers present (Mr 
Gil and Mr Evison) to leave the meeting. 
 

Clerks note: The Committee moved into informal session for this discussion. 

 

APSC20. 
 

FUTURE MEETINGS 

 The Committee noted the dates of future meetings as detailed below: 
 
3rd November 2009  
9th February 2010  
30th March 2010 
 
  
 

 
The meeting ended at 21:30 hrs 
 
 
 
David Liebeck 
 
Chair 
 
 

Page 72



Agenda Item 13Page 73
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14Page 85
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Finance Update
	6 Internal Audit Report on the Trust - Covering Report to LB Haringey's Internal Audit
	LBH Audit Report APPCT 061009 Appendix 1 (Final)

	7 Park Activities Update
	8 Fireworks 2009 - Update
	9 HARINGEY HEARTLANDS - PLANNING APPLICATION
	10 MINUTES
	Minutes
	Minutes , 08/09/2009 Alexandra Palace and Park Consultative Committee.
	Minutes , 01/09/2009 Alexandra Park and Palace Advisory Committee.

	13 minutes
	further revised exempt minutes

	14 Matter arising from APB021

